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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

A resilient performance in an unprecedented year

I am pleased to report the finangial results for the year ended 31 December 2020 for Drive Topco Limited Group and
its eperating and trading business, FirstPort Limited and is subsidiaries {collectively, “FirstPort” and the “Greup).
FirslPort 15 a leading provider of UK residential property services and also offers management of residential and
commercial assels for s client base.

Drive Topco Limiled was incorporated on 1 June 2019 and the Group was formed on 6 September 2019 following
the acquistion of Knight Square Holdings Limited Groug. which FirstPort 15 a part of The financial siatements on
pages 27 to 74 therefore shows comparatves for the T month period from incorporation which includes trading for
the 4 month period since ihe acquisiticn of Knight Square Hotdings Limited Group on 6 September 2019

This report will provide commentary on the 2020 year and its comparatives to the 12 months perfarmance of the
FirstPort businesses in 2019 to allow for meaningful analysis and to demonstrate the strength of the business as the
2019 Group results are not a full year comparative in these financial statements

FirstPort

As the world grappled with the unprecedented impact of a global pandemic. | am pleased to report that FirstPort has
been stabie and resiient throughout 2020 with an unwavering focus on the wellbeing of customers, employees. and
supply chain

FastPortis a significant provider of residential property managament services i the UK and has furlher cemented its
position as the largest private residential property manager i whal remains a highly fragmented market  With almost
290 000 homes under management. across 5.000 developments FustPort continues to play a key role in drniving
higher standards across the sector and championing a customer fiest approach FirstPort s customer senvice
performance and beand reputation also continued to improve in 202¢

COVID-19

FirstPort responded weli to the chalienges presenied by COVID- 19 Services continued to be delivered for
residential customers and clients with adapted operational stralegies to respond to changing Government guidance
Figld and office-based employees adapted well to remaote working and productivity remained high  Most site-based
employees remained in place at develgpments to provide essential support for their residents in a socially dislanced
and safe way This has been especially important for FirstPort's more vulnerable residents. particularly the
retirement households it supports across 1.500 independent retirement communities  While some revenus streams
have inevitably been delayed or impacted such as our resales servies, the business has responded prudently to
ensure continued high service for customers and clienls alongside a stable financiai performance during tius
unprecedented period

Market change

Changing Government guidance on building and fire safety has continued to present chailenges for the whale
restdential proparty management sector  FirstPort has responded well. with the formation of a dedicated building
safety team to manage applications ta relevant Government funding streams including the caordination of
investigative and remediation works This team has been constructed to ensure residential customers are well
supported through these processes.

Group outlook

FirstPort has demonstrated 11s resilience through 2620 and 1s well positioned to successfully meet the changing
demands of an evolving industry fandscape. The business remains in a strong position moving out of 2020, having
made two strategic acquisiions and a record orderbook of new business to mobilise

The Board remans committed to delivenng market-leading services through exceflent customer senvice. the
deployment of a new techrology-enabled platform soon, and outstanding employee engagement. FusiPor is ready
to futther build upon ds position as a leading res:dential service provider

Paul Lester CBE

Chairman

30 April 2021
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Our 2020 strategic development paves the way to achieving our growth potential

Principal activities

FirstPort is one of the UK's largest residential property services business, with over 40 years’ experience and a
targe satisfied customer base. Qur principal activity can be segmented into two key areas.

+ Qur residential offerings which encompasses procuring and delivering services to residential customers in
communal developments — from blocks of apartments to estates of houses

*  Qur client-based offering which encompasses the management of residential and commercial assets for our
invester client hase Additional services offered in this segment include ground rent collechion. consulting.
surveying. lettings, and resales services.

Our purpose

FirstPort's primary objective is to ensure that residents hiving in developments it manages, are safe and well-served
within the legislative regime  Our 3,800 employees help us achieve our objectives daily, carng for the places our
customers call home They do their upmest to ensure that buildings where cur residents hve and share with their
neighbours, are safe, clean. and comfortable Customers don't have to worry about finding the night suppher,
getting the best deal working out how to sphit the bill with their neighbours or making sure there's encugh money
1n their deveiopment’s bank account to pay for everything — FirstPort manages all of that so our customers can get
on with enjoying therr homes and communities

For our investor clients, cuf approach 1s centered around supporting their residents and the assets they own  We
provide regular updates through our reporting toois to ensure investors have accurate and up to date information to
make the decisions they need Whether we are managing a customer's home or a clients’ asset. we seek to
nurture strong relationshps with all stakeholders to aid understanding and support their needs

Qur operating model

Since the acquisition of Mainstay in September 2020. FirstPort's business is structured inte two man operating
divisions that are independent from each other with their own leaderstup team, brand, and policies ~ residential
services, and commercial and asset management.

The residential services diisioh is delivered under the FirstPort brand (Business to Consumer) and consists of six
operational areas of focus that each care for their specific residential customer In its own unique way with its own
dedicated team to deliver a hrgh quality service for that segment. The operationat areas are; Luxury. Large and
Complex. Property Services. Estates, Build To Rent delivery, and Retirement.

The commercial and asset management division 1s delivered under the Mainstay brand (Business to Business).
acts independently and provides confidence to our client base that therr assets are in safe hands Under this
division a range of services are provided which include commerciai facilities management, residential asset
management and residental market services (ground rent coliections. bulld-to-rent operations lethngs and sales)

Both divisions are supporied by centralised professional in-house teams that provide their expertise across a wide
range of areas to ensure that customers and clients receve the exceptionat service required

Market backdrop

FustPort 1s the largest private residential properly manager. with a pertfolic of 230,000 homes across 5.000
developments There are an estimated 5.3 million leasehold homes in England, of which 65% are managed. The
Government has set a target for new builds annually at circa 0 3 mullion per annum  The target 1s expected to be
achieved in the future with alt measures indicating that housing demand in the UK remains hugh thus highlighting
the growth potentiai of the UK housing market.
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As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic. most of the country spent more time at home in 2020 than ever befare
The importance of having a well-managed home environment and the positive benefits of communities have never
been clearer FustPort adapled its approach to meet guidelines on safety and wellbeing but ensured where
possible thal community spit and an-going management of common areas continued  As such, FustPord is well
posttioned to contnue to grow. supporting residential customers in both new build and existing communities who
value a professional approach to the management of their homes

Residential Market

While the natonai response to COVID-12 earlier in 2020 inevitably slowed the new build market due to construction
and sales shutdowns. this picked up again during the second hall of the year as the country adapted to the ‘new
normal’ Most new build developments take several years to complete and unwind nto active management.
meaning FirstPort's new build orderbook continued to mobilise in 2020 despite delays

The Government's stamp duty holiday also stimulated increased demand and consumer confidence, with the
number of sales agreed in 2020 up 10% compared to 2019. While it remains to be seen whether this demand will
be sustained after the stamp duty holiday ends in June, it seems unlikely that house buying activity wilt slump as the
country recovers from the impact of COVID-19

Building and fire safety remains a priority

Sector-wide challenges relating to building and fire safety have continued. with an anlicipated 1 27m flats across
the UK impacted by changing Government guidance with many leaseholders now required 1o obtain an External
Wall System fire review form {"EWS1') As aresult. some mpacted leaseholders are struggling ta re-mortgage or
sell their homes, with an estmated 30.000 house sales having alieady fallen through as a result  FrstPort, ke
property managers across the country, sees first-hand the customer concerns and frustrations as these legacy
safety issugs are tackled

As of February 2021. the Government has committed to making a total of £5bn funding available to help impacted
leasehoiders in buildings over 18 metres in height to remediate their buildings in ling with these standards
However 1t is yel to be seen if this will be suffictent  For buildings under 18 metres. funding is not avaitable and at
present the Government is suggesting the offering of a ioan scheme for impacted leaseholders

FirstPort s sector leading health and safety expertise has underpinned our respanse to these challenges. and a
separate building safety team has beer formed to support both customers and chents  The business made 173
registrations to the non-ACM remediation fund en behalf of bulding owners and leaseholders  While the Fund
continues to assess registrations during 2021, FustPort's response and approval rate for applications is tracking
above the national average This is a positive step forward far leasehalders. but ngvitably due ta the size af the
fund and number of buildings submitted nationally. the outcome remains uncertain We are working hard to
support all those impacted during this uncertain and challenging tme  Our prionty 1s the safety of our residents and
we will be doing all we can to help them work through their funding oulcome and any necessary remediation of their
buriding including ongoing engagement with Government and across the sector te seek heipful and practicable
sofutions,

In 2020, FrsiPort's building safety team also successfully secured over 1.100 new EWS1 forms for more than 440
residential developments in our care, pesitvely impacting over 8 100 homes at these sites and enabling many of
these customers 1o move or remongage

National awareness of these challenges has significantly increased in 2020, with media campaigns telling the very
human stories of impacted leaseholders and seeking positive change o unlock this sduation  The sector's industry
bodies, FirsiPort and other leading property managers. are continuing to work together with all parties including
labbying Government. to seek practical solutions and support for leaseholders.

Regulatory Reform

Government momentum towards possible changes to the leasehold system has conbnued along with
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consideration of future regulation for managing agents. The driver for these reforms is increased support for
consumers, giving ieaseholders greater say aver how ther developments are run and greater confidence i the
organisations’ managing their homes

While leasehoid reform will likety give residents greater responsibiiity in the future. complex residential buifdings
and developments will continue to need professicnal managers with a range of skills and well-tramed staff working
to high standards. FirstPort already looks after more than 1,000 resident managed developments. estimated to be
the largest resident managed portfclio in the UK in a recent survey conducted with some of our resident directars,
79% of respondents indicated that their property manager was their first point of call for support and advice Trust,
quality. and service aiso ranked as most importani to respondents when it came to their managing agent.

These findings confirm that FirstPort ts well placed to support custemers with the management of their
developments both now and n the future and we have long welcomed greater resident engagement and
involvement

Mandatory regulation of managing agents also presents an opportunity for FirstPort Having emnbraced voluntary
regulation via ARMA-Q accreditation many years ago, we already work to the high standards that the whole sector
is Iikely to be held to in due course We are supportive of this drive towards sector-wide regulation. which will
undoubtediy set higher standards and give consumers much needed trust and confidence in the services delivered
by professional property managers Some market consclidation can e expected as a result of these on-going
reforms. which represents an oppoertunity far acquisitive growth and professionalisation.

COVID-19 response

FirstPort's response to COVID-19 has proven the business to be both steadfast and adaptable The business
adapted its approach rapidly to make sure it could still deliver services to customers and clients in a safe and
complant way An execulive response group has been in place and meeting freguently since early March 2020 to
manage the business’ response to COVID-19  This group continues to meet weekly to ensure any adaptations to
the business’ approach in response to the changing situatron and Government advice can be discussed agreed,
and implemented at pace

Despite the challenges presented by COVID-18. FirstPort has remained resilient with stable year-on-year adjusted
EBITDA and cash generation continued organic and acquisitive growth, and on-going improvernents to customer
sentiment and brand reputation

QOur site-based staff remained in place throughout the pandemic to provide critical services for residents. making
sure that their development continued to run safely and smoothly The presence of cur on-site teams has been
important. \We adapted our management approaches to make sure we could deliver our services while keeping
both our employees and residents safe Every development s different from amemities to concierge desks and
parcel rooms, meaning there was no ‘one size fits all’ approach  Qur operations teams have worked hard to apply
corperate and Government guidance to their developments to ensure that a suitably adapted approach was in place
far every propery 1n our care

For our most vulnerable residents in the retirement communites we manage. our employees went above and
beyond for their customers We introduced enhanced cleaning regimes, as well as visitor and communal space
restrictions well ahead of the first national lockdown in March 2020 to make sure our residents were protected  Qur
retirement development managers have remained on site to support their custormers throughout the pandemic and
have adapted their routines to make sure sociai distancing and hygiene measures were In place.

We also recognised that isolation and loneliness was likely 1o prove as much of a challenge to the residents as the
physical risks presented by COVID-18, particutarly while communal lounges were shut for safety reasons Qur
development managers continued to check in on all their customers regutarly, making calls to residents’
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apartiments rather than physically visiting. and we shared weekly written updates with our retirement customers,
along with packs of puzzles and crosswords for those who wanted something to help keep them entertained Qur
reqular retirement magazine and videos also provided helpfid diet and exarcise tips, as well as interesting acticles

FirstPort's office and field-based employees also adapted well to their change in working patterns At the start of
the pandemic, the busingss rapidly mobifised to enable remote working for all these staff, including those working in
our customer contact centres. Productivity remained high and employees demonstrated a continued commitment
to delivering excellent customer and chient service  Employees have been surveyed and the majority have indicated
a preference towards a flexible working approach post-COVID-19. combining increased home working as well as
some time in the office  As a resuit. we are continuing to assess our office footprints and environments with our
future working patterns in rind.

Five-star Health and Safety

tn 2015, FirstPort was the first organisation within the property managemant sector to acheve a five-star rating from
the British Safety Council Five years later, we have achieved our fifth consecutive five-star rating in our
Oceupational Health and Safety Auditin 2020, as well as receiving the Bnibsh Safety Councit's prestigious Sword of
Hanour i 2619, recogrising excelignce in health and safety management

When |ooking after people’s homes. safely is of the utmost importance These assessments of our health and
safety performance have consistently recogmsed the embedded cuiture across our organisation. a clear
commitment from senior management an enthusiastic health and safety team and good processes for stakeholder
engagement. compliance monitoring and building management. We take our obligations for safety across office,
operational, and development sites very senously . along with the risks to staff traveliing between locations, These
abligations extend to staff, residents. wstors contractors, and members of the public  Risks are mitigated by our
strong health and safety culture. a safety nsk register, continuous monitoring and reporting of accidents and near
misses.

Acquisitive Growth

FirstPor has continued {o grow in 2020, making two sirategic acquisihons that furiher strengthens its posian as
sector leader. On 15 September 2020. FirstPort acquired 100% of the share capital of the Mainstay Group
('Mainstay '} and on 2 Cecember 2020, 100% of the share capital of the Chamonix Group {"Chamonix’} The
combined acquisitions added approximately 92.000 hames 1a the Geoup. and we aim ta ensure that their residents
benefit from the combined skills that will be nurtured together o deliver their serice Costs associated with the
fransactions can be found in the exceptionai spend highlighted in the profit and loss account

In a fragmented market that is undergoing regulatory scrutiny for the nght reasons. we feel that 1 is imporiant that
the varied skill sets m the market are combined where possible Our aim in deing so, is to provide continuity for
those smaller arganisations that may struggle with ongoing regulatory change and increased standards whrst
harnessing their capabilities to provide customers and clients with professional management  FirstPort, though the
jargest UK property manager. remains a smail proporhon af the market so the potential to support others whilst
ietaining customer chotce, 1s attanabie

Tech-enabled future of FirstPort

FirstPort has continued to invest in technology throughout 2020 via our comprehensive fransformation pragramme
The first phase is due to complete and roll-out in 2021 with additiona! functionality and services bewng added at later
stages

Our principtes when embarking an thrs approach was te truly became a connected enterprise. add value to alt
slakehalders. customers. chients. supphers. and employees We seek to differentiate ourseives through the
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platform being built by connecling stakeholders seamlessly. and in ways and at times that are convenient o them
The dala access and improved communication wilb mprove significantiy making responding to the challenges aur
sector faces easier to adapt to  However, we have been clear that this isn'l just a tech-enabled approach so
through our design phases we have sought to remove the administrative burden our service dictates allowing our
colleagues o spend more time on proactive engagement with customars and clients to nltmately deliver a market-
leading service thal they deserve  We feel this technology enabled but people first approach brings a unique and
distinctive blend of caring for homes backed by helpful technclogy that best responds to modern lifestyles

Our People

We recognise that cur people play a leading role in our service delivery and are central to how our brand s
expenenced i homes and in society in 2020. we had the privilege of weicoming new colleagues from Mainstay
and Chamonix. taking us to over 3.800 employees by the end of the year. While gur people cover a wide range of
skilis and disciplines. they are united in their professionalism and dedication to deing the right thing for their
customers

Qur commitment to our employees has again been recagrised by the Top Employers institute  Following a

ngorous assessment in late 202C. FirstPort has been named one of the UK’'s 2021 Top Employers — a prestigious
centifications which we have now ach:eved for the third consecutive year. This accreditation, alongside our 4.2 out
of § rating on employee review site, Glassdoar. sets FirstPort apart from our competitors as a true industry leader

We operate a robust and active equal opporturity policy. and pride ourselves on our diverse workforce  Qur
employees successfully bring together different competencies, skills and specialisms. educational backgrounds.
ethnicity, religious beliefs. and physical abiliies, and we judge performance without prejudice or discrimination Al
colieagues are welcomed and supported i our inclusive culture  Cur policy enables and supports the recruitrmernt
of disabled workers  We provide assistance needed with initial raining and we adagpt the workplace as
appropriale

As a business. we consult and discuss with emplayees, both indiwdually and collectively. about any matters likely
la impac! their interests  We value open caommunicatian. with imporant iformation and updates shared with
employees through regufar news bulletins, as well as monthly CEO and executive updates, to ensure all our
empiloyees are aware of any faclors affecting our business.

We understand the imporlance of wellbeing. and thal this has been more impertant than ever in such an
unprecedented year. Our employees mentat health and wellbeing are supported through gur Employee
Assistance Programme, as well as cofleagues trained as Mental Health First Aiders Dunng COVID-19, regular
cormmuricalions and additional support have been provided te employees across the business. from shanng
nformation an avaitable mental health resources to tips for home-schooling parents

We place great importance on making sure our employees are trained and develop their polential Qur
management process heips lo regularly identfy any additional raining that may be required 1o help employees
pursue and remain competent for their roles  Our e-learning platform includes training modules designed to make
sure we all. actin a lawful and compiianl way while conducling day 1o day dutes. this inciudes data privacy. anti-
bribery and anti-money laundering, modern slavery and health and salety legislation  For high risk tapics,
employees are required to complete this training annually. To suppon employee growth online training modules
also cover 2 range of development topics, from becoming a great teader threugh to how to mentor and coach
others

Cur investment in our people has continued. despite the challenges presented by 2020, and e-learning has
become even more important than ever with cur leading on-boarding programme adapted for our onfine learning
environment. Our well-established mentar/mentee programme has conlinued, giving employees new appostunities
o develop. learn new skills and progress thesr careers al FirstPort. We also continued lo suppoert our employees
lo pursue relevant professional quslifications particularly with the Institute of Residential Property Managememt
{IRPM)
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We welcomed the fifth annual intake of our successtul graduate scheme in September 2020, gving seven
graduates the opportunity to become residential property managers at the end of their 12-month programme. Each
graduate is gwven an executive mentor, providing invaluable senior support and guidance as they embark on therr
cargers. Uespite COVID-13, we were proud to welsome a similar size graduate cohort ta normal and while the
scheme had to be adapted to faciitate increased home working, the graduates are still performing well in their
placemeants.

Financial and operational performance

FirstPort’'s 2020 results have been pleasing especially in a year that brought unprecedented challenges for the UK
and Glcbal economies  We have seen a steady and resilient performance with a small improvement financially
year on year based on adjusted EBITDA. but what has made me exceptienally proud. 1s the manner in which we
managed aperahonally. the dedication our teams derngnstrated to customers and ciients. and the minimal
disruphion created in service through their commitment  We had strict guidelines to follow, our customer base has
been very understanding and in return we built strong relationships that heiped us emerge more agile. more
energetic and more customer focused than ever befare,

Qur sectar has seen challenges additional to COVID-19 that impacted normal business operations. These
challenges encompass areas such as the new bulding safety reqime. the slow-down in the housing market in
earlier 2020 and the requirement of an EWS1 farm for leaseholders selling or re-mortgaging their homes

However, our scate and Ninancial dynamics helped us invest in areas that needed the additional resource and
flexibiity in areas that expenenced temporary downlurns  The lessons learnt from 2020 have been positive for the
business and the agility created in our operations should help us pursue future growth cpportunibtes  Our balance
sheet remains 1n a strong pesition and our liquidity has performed as expected and remains posiive for the
foreseeable future  We understand we aire fortunate 1o have such posiive dynamics and explain mare detatl on
ous financial pedormance on page 8

Social Responsibility
Ethical standards and principles

Ethics and transparency are integral to how we do business, and the cornerstones of our corporate principles We
have strong corperate policies and safeguards in place, and a track record of abiding by and promoting high ethical
standards All our employees are responsibie for adhering to our business practices, which follow both the letter
and the spmt of the law, as well as our Code of Conduct that reflects the highest standards of corparate and
individual behawviour

Centrepaint

We recognise and take seriously our responsibility to positrvely impact the quality of iife of our emplayees, their
families. and the wider communitres in which we operate  Following an employee vote in 2018, Centrepoint. a
leading youlh hormelessness chanly, was selecled as our corporate chanty partner. Since our parinership began in
December 2018 FirsiPort has raised more than £91,000 for Centrepsint
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Outfook

The alkgnment of increased customer empowerment, higher safety and prafessional standards. the prospect of
connected technology. and a culture of caring for people’s home environments. creates umique oppartunities
Backed by a financial resilience that withstood the global econcnuc challenges of 2020, means we remain posifive
about the prospects ahead.

Nigel Howell
Director
30 April 2023
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Group financial performance

2020 2019 Change
E'000 £000 %
Revenue 66,786 60.814 10%
Adjusted EBITDA 13.484 12.803 5%

Revenue and adusted EBITDA for the 2019 year has been taken from the 2019 Knight Square Holdings Limited
Group financial statements (contnuing operations only as this relates to FirstPort) ta allow for 8 12 month
comparalive analysis

The 2020 year has been unlike any other due to the unprecedented COVID-19 global pandemic Social and
sconomic iockdowns along with restrichions for much of the year have led 1o uncertainties for most businesses
across the UK and around the worfd  The impact of such events has gone beyond financial results. so the focus
was to marmtain stability and support the various stakeholders of our business. During this penod. the Group
benefited from its resilient characteristics with revenue sireams and adjusted EBITDA faigely stable compared to
priof year. Some discretionary cost reductions have been put in place to help soften the impact of market effected
areas and we did carry out some restructuring to help us emerge leaner and more agile for the future. The Group
remaingd cash generative in these chalienging cendittons with a very stable balance sheet and liguidity profile

The change in the ecoromic chmale also enabled management to conduct an in-depth review of the businesses
cost base and its resources to ensure it remnains relevant to the requirements of both the current and future UK
environment. The result of the review re-shaped the Groups fixed cost base with fewer paper transactions
oceurning. a reduced office footprint and a fiexible ‘new way of working for its employees  These changes have
meant permanent efficiencies are now in place and more benefits will be derved In the following year More
importantly, the aqite approach will mear an enhanced level of service for our customers which wil only improve
further when our new systems roll out in 2021

Heaith and safety contnue to be the Group's top prierity. and changes to reguiation required the Group to invest
significantly in specific areas to help manage the increased complexity. Such changes include the Building Safety
Fund Waking Watch Fund and External Wall System (EWS1) processes We understand that tegislative changes
have caused concern far our custormess and clents, and our investment has been made to help equip the business
reduce such concerns as best as we can

Revenue

Group revenues for 2020 were £66 8m, showing an increase of 10% on prior year (2019: £60 8m) Growth came
from acquisitions. with Mainstay trading for three and a half months ang Chamonix for one  In addibion to building
on the core base of FirstPort. Mainstay provided new revenue streams in the commercial and asset management
space as well as an expanded client base This provides a great platform to build on these new products and
extend our reach across the property market  Organic growth was evident in the underlying business when the
wmpact of COVID-19 is removed. COVID-18 impacted areas were lacgely the vanable revenue streams that
correlate to market conditions, and we expect these Lo fargely return in 2021

The growth can be clearly seen from the units under management. increasing to 280,000 in the vear from 196.000
w 2019 Mobiisations performed especially wel given the closures that tock piace. and acquistions added 92,000
units which came anline during the fast quaster of the year The full year revenue impact of the acquired units will
be seen in 2021. The record order book of 85.000 units as at Decembers 2020 further demonstrates the long-term
heaith of the business, with record arganic wins of 17.00C units in the year

Adjusted EBITDA

The Group's adjusted EBITDA for 2020 was £13 5m. representing an annual increase of 5% from £12.8m in 2019
Acquisitive growth has been the main contributor, jushfyng additional investment made in this area with the
acquisitron of Mainstay and Chamonix, which brought a broader skill set across the Group i addition to mcreased
adjusted EBITDA.

Adjusted EBITOA excludes interest expense. {axation. depseciation, amortisation, loss on disposal of assets.
axceptional items & share based payments
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Exceptional items and loss before taxation

Exceptional tems af £2.8m i 2020 are one-off in nature and mainly relate to the integration of acquisitians along
with restructuring costs foliowing a management review of the business  After exceptional items. depreciation,
amortisation. and interest charges explained below. the Group ingurred a loss before taxation of £13 4m (four-
manth traging period ending 2018 £5 7m)

Interest

The interest charge for year was £11 7m (2019, £3.4m). made up of £6 1m (2018 £1 6m) interest on bank loans
and another £5 6m {2019 £1 6m) of interest on shareholder lgans  The interest charge represents a full year in
comparison 1o a four-month trading period in 2019 hence the increase  However. the Group has also increased
borrowing levets during 2020 to support growth The shareholder loan interest was not payable in 2020 as it
accrues on an annual basis

Taxation

The tax charge in the year of £Q 6m reflects the tax impact of non-tax-deductible expenses of £2 2m and effect of
tax rate changes of £1.2m  The deferred tax Liabity balance of £15 1m mainly represents the deferred 1ax hability
arisen from the acquisition of Knight Square Holdings Group in 2019 and the acquisitions of Mainstay and
Chamonix in 2020
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT - FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Group financial position

Intangible assets

As at 31 December 2020, total intangible assets balance was £163.3m (2019 £119.0m), consisting of £72 Om in
goodwill {2019 £51 2m). £67.5m in customer relationships (2018 £54.8m), £10 3m in brands (2019 £7.5m) and
£13 6m in software costs (2019 £5 5m) Software costs relate to intellectual property created from the digital
transformation program which is due to be rolled outin 2021, The mcrease in goodwill. customner contracts and
brand resulted from the acquisitions Mainstay's customer contracts were valued at £11 6m, brands at £3 2m and
goodwill at £17.2m as at the date of acquisition  Chamanix had customer contracts valued at £7 3m, brands at
£0 5m and goodwill at £6 5m

Net liabilities position

The Group's net liabilities were £19 6m (2018, £5.6m), reflecting the loss after tax in the year and an increase in
net current habilities shown below.

Current assets and liabilities

The net current habities are £7.9m (2018 £3 7m). dniven by contractual relationships whare fees are collected
advance, and the utlisanen of the Governmerd VAT defeiment scheme  These will unwind largety in the 2021
financial year

Borrowings and cash

The Group increased its loan facilkities duning 2020 to a £105.2m (2019 £81.7m) facility with NatWest and
Pemberion The increase in facilities continues to be aligned within the Group’s capacity and servicing
capabilities

As at 31 December 2020 the total debt held was £97 7m (2019 £64 2m) with a cash balance of £7 6m (2019

£4 8m) which resulted in net debt of £90.7m (2019 £5%.6m) The Group has one class of shareholder loan note
in ssue at the balance sheet date. with a principal of £61 4m (2013 £51 Om) and acerued interest of £7 2m {2019
£1.6m) Shareholder loan notes of £10.4m were issued i the year Issue of ordinary shares resulted In proceeds
of £0.1mn the year

Gash flow and covenants

Cash balances are managed in line with financing and working capital requirements of the Group's trading
businesses  The Greup ensures that is suppliers are paid in a bmely manner and are in-ine with agreed
contractual terms  The Group emoyed a goad stable liquidity profile in 2020 thus enabling 1t to continue to service
is debts and suppivers in a normal manner Cash generated from its operations for 2020 was £12 2m (2018
outflow £11 Sm) which is another strong sign of stability in an uncertain year for the UK economy

The total cash outflow for investing activiies was £45 8m (2019 £34 1m) representng the consideration pad on
the acquisiions of Mainstay and Chamonix along with the continued investment in the Group's digital
transformauon program. Cash wflow from financing actvities in the Group was £36 7m {2019 £50.5m) reflecting
an increase in borrowngs and shareholder laans

As a Group we continue to be diligent (n monitenng banking covenants which are forecasted monthly and tested
each quarter We have comionably exceeded all covenant requirements for the quarters ended. including 31
December 202G
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The Group’'s principal nsks and uncertainties are set out in the table beiow together with their patential imgact on

our business and the measures we take to manage and mitigate them

Risk

Risk Description

Mitigation

Health and safaty
{"H35")

The nsk of breaches of H&S standards
resulting in injuries, environmental damage
or physical damage to property leading to
financial penaities reputational damage
and delays to site related activities

Dedicated H&S team under the guidance of
skilled H&S Director

Robust H&S culture with safety risk register

Contract retention

The risk associated to the degendency on
key chent/customer contracts and the loss
of contracts

Delivery of high-quality customer service
under standardised ‘four pillars’ approach
Maintairing a regular dialogue  with
individual and business customers
Commitment to the principles set out in its
Custamer Charter

Reputation

The nsk of damage to brand name or
reputation either through our people, our
behaviors. or third parties acting on our
behalf

Improvement in customer service and clear
complaints processes reduce the risk of]
issues escalating

Monitonng and responding to customer
feedback on erployees and thid party
supplier sesvices

Policies and whistle-blower hotline

Economic nsks and
changes in market
dynamics

Fallure to respond effectively 1o
developments (n the broader eccnomy,
competition and other market or fiscal
dynamics, mncluding Brexit and the COVID-
1€ pandemic

Resilient UK based business model
Significant experience and expertise in
chosen markets

Frequent review of competition

Market insight and intelligence

Financial Failure to mantain appropnate financiall * Experienced finance team
management contrals throughout the business. including] «  Financial control environment
the management of debt cavenants. creditl o ¢jsse monttoring of financiai performance.
risk fraud risk and taxation debt covenants and credit nsk by semor
management
* Board oversight of financial performance
Systems The risk associated with the non- delivery] *  Investment in appropriate technelogy and

dependence and
business continuity

and future-proofing of our technoiogy.
including the potential impact of business
interruption through systems and faciinies

staff

IT governance structure

IT resibence and disaster recovery plans
designed ta restore service

Business continuty plan for each business
operational office

Cyber security accreditation
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Risk Risk Description Mitigation
Legat and regulatory The risk of failing to comply with| * Employment of quaiified advisors both
compliance relevant laws. regulations  and internaily and externally who report regularly
Standards  including AML. CCO, to the Board about all significant legistative
Gender Pay Reporting and Mederm changes in the UK
Stavery s Development of internal polcies and
procedures to ensure adequate caplure of]
legal and regulatory compliance issues
e« Maintenance of risk register for all current
regulatory issues
+  Training programmes for staff
Peaple Risk The risk that we fail to attract and| = HR strategy encompassing recruitment

retain high calibre employees in order
to deliver on all aspects of our strategy

reward, retention, taient development and
performance management

Succession planning for middte and senior,
management

Regular review of top talent i the
orgamsation regardless of level by all
executive members

Data protection and
privacy risk

The risk of the loss or misuse of
customer of employeea data

tnformation security policies encompassing
data protection

fnvestment in appropnate technology and
staff

General data protection regulation {GDPR)
steernng commitiee

Breach register and (CO registration
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Board and Board Committees
Governance
Qur Group 15 privately owned And as of 31 December 2020 had a board comprising of six directors

Cur Chairman, P J Lester, has respensibility for the Board and N Howell, Chief Executive Oficer, executes the
Group's strategy and commercial objectves and implements the decisions of the Board.

Operation of the Board

Qur Board meets at least ten imes each year to review the Group's strategy and perfarmance Executive
management are regularly invited to attend Board meetings, as appropriate Health and safety performance. along
with key risks and obligations are reviewed and considered at our Board meetings

Committees of the Board
Audit Committee

Qur Group's Audit Committee is made up of three non-executive directors comprised of P J Lester (Charr -
independent}. T Swales (shareholder representative). and | Boman-Flavel! (shareholder representative) The Audit
Committee s scheduled to meet at least twice a year to review our results and internal controls

Qur exdernal auditors are also invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings ta report their findings

Remuneration Committee

We have a Group Remuneration Committee made up of three non-Executive directors - P J Lester (Chair) T
Swales. and | Boman-Flavell The Committee meets at least twice a year to review Executive Directar objectives.
pay rises bonuses and discuss pay rates as required.

Internal control and risk management

Cur approach to infernal contro! is delivered through seniar management sversight via a dedicated internal
governance and compliance team The two responsible Executive Directors hold monthly internal control meetings
with the governance team based on the Board's agreed risk framewaork mitigating strategies, and the latest status
of the risks Any changes or maiters of concern are reported to the full Board As a Group we also maintain and
monitor a set of detailed poiicy documents across all areas of our operations, including heaith and safety.
procurement. finance. and governance {including competition and bribery) We use the support of external experis
to conduct ad hoc reviews of specific areas of the business that the Board considers may present significant risk

Independent auditors

Qur auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. have indicated ther willingness to centinue in office and a resolution
for their re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

14



DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Financial risk management

The Group's operations expose us te a vanety of financial risks that include the effects of cradit. kquidity, cashflow
and interest rate nisk  There are robust contrals in place to limit any adverse impact on our Group’s performance by
monitoring potental financial nsks  Given the business’ size, the Directors have not delegated the responsbility of
mondaring financial risk management to a sub-committee of the Board.

Cur Group's exposure to interest rate risk was assessed by management and considered low. We have a large base
of UK residential and commercial customers. which reduces the cancentration of credd risk. Where we transact with
corporate customers. our credit contro! teams follow strict processes for managing and mitigating the risk of non-
payment of charges

The Group has cash management and forecasting processes in place to manage cashflow and hguididy within our
existing financing

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

We have been warking with the Carbon Trust since 2018, whose rmission is to help organisations acceierate the
delivery of a sustainable low carbon economy The Carbon Trust is helping us review our carbon footprint and have
granted vs IS0 14001 3 This demaonstrates the Group's on-going commitment to reduce our environmental impact.
with further plans already i place 1o build on the positive work done m 2020

We measured our total greenhouse gas emissions acrass the five FirstPort offices. directly and indrectly, to cover a
12-month period between 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 This ensured compliance with the UK
Government's Streamlined Energy and Carban Reparting (SECR) requue. applicahble to all large businesses with a
reporting penod starting after ¥ Apnl 2019

FirstPort's energy use and asscciated GHG emissions from electnerty and fuel across our five UK offices can be
found i the table below. alang with scope calculations aligned to the Greenhouse Gas Protocot  VWithin this protacal,
we have chosen an operatonal contrel approach and have used the UK government emission factors for 2020 for al!
Cur EMiSSioN SOUNCES

2020 Energy usage 2020 Emissions
{kWh) (kgCO2e)
Electricity (scope 2) 858.307 200,106
Natural gas (scope 1) 121.033 32,189
Transport fuels - company vehicles (scope 1) 84 479 23,397
Transport fuels - grey fleet (scope 3) 1.920.671 476,197
2,984,490 728,883
Vehicte T Fuel T Emission Factor £ Use KWh Emissions (kgCO2
ehicle Type uel Type Kg CO2/kWh nergy Use issions (kg )
Fieet Cars Dresel 001118 1.259 14
Fleel Cars Petiol 0 00765 83,220 537
Grey Fleet Cars® Oiesel 001118 960,335 10.717
Grey Fleet Cars® Petral 000765 960.335 7347

‘Note A 50 50 Petroi Digsel spht was vsed

Vehicle emissions were only measured in 2020 and not in 2019.
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STRATEGIC REPORT - GOVERNANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2019 Energy usage 2019 Emissions

(kWh) {kgCO2e)
Electricity {scope 2) 841,296 215035
Natural gas (scope 1) 242 210 44 530
Transport fuels - company vehicles (scape 1) 614,734 150,485
Transport fuels - grey fleet (scope 3) 3145530 748,066
4,843,770 1,168,116

2020 carbon emission intensity

Benchmark value Emissions intensity
Intensity benchmark (FTE staff members) (kgCO2e/staff FTE)
Carbon emissions intensity per staff member (kgCO2e/FTE} 1 063 682

2019 carbon emission intensity

Benchmark vaiue Emissions intensity
Imtensity benchmark {FTE staff members) (kgCQ2e/staff FTE)
Carbon emissians intensity per staff member (kgCO2e/FTE) 812 1426

As i 2019. refrigeration emissions for 2020 are 0 so have been omitted.

We have continued our commitment to reducing cur business’ carbon faotprint with all measures reducing
from 2019 Specific actions taken in 2020 inctude LED and automated lighting in our office spaces, moving
lo a 'greener’ energy. evaluation of renewable energy technologies, reducing building supply capacity and
improving overall awareness on ckmate change We stnive to further embed our envirenmental, social and
corporate responsibitiies into our culture and expect improvements to extend into 2021
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Statement on the Directors’ performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172 (1) Companies
Act 2006 (continued)

The Direclors of our Group act in accordance with a set of general duties which are delaifed in the UK Companies
Act 2006 These include a duly to promate the success of the Group for the benefit of its members as a whole and
to consider (amongst other matters)

s The likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

s Thenterests of the Group's employees.

*  The need to foster the Group's business relationships with suppliers, custarmers and others,

* Theimpact of the Group's operations on the community and the environment,

*  The desirability af the Group maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct, and
¢ The need to act fairly as between members of the Group

Qur Directors are briefed annually on ther duties and they can access professionat advice either through the
Group or. aningependent provider, as required.

The Board has reviewed their current approach o carporale governance and decision making. engagement with
stakeholders and their impact on the environiment. How the Board fulfils #ts duties under Seclion 172 {1} s
summarised as foliows.

Decision-making

The Board meets moninly with owr semor executive managameat leam o discuss key 1ssues and {0 make sure that
strategic plans are followed  Key actions are taken and comimurscated to the semor managernent leam regularly
atong wath the wader business (o enswie iansparency and o mamtam focus on the business key strategic goals. A
monthly ‘Businass Buzz' wideo 1s distributed on the Group's internat platform where the Chiet Execubive Officer and
other key Senior Managers cascade imporlant messages te all employees

The Board undertakes an i-depth review of the Group's strategy annuaily. based on a 5-year business pian. The
approved plan then forms the strategic diection of the business with amendments made as and when necessary
during the reviews The plan and strategy form the basis for financial budgets. resource plans and iINnvestment
decisions When making decsions relating to the business plan and future strategy the Board takes into
canaderation a vanety of matters including the interest of various stakeholders the consequences of its decisions
In the leng-term and its reputation. For more information on aur strategic developments in 2020, see pages 2 - 8

The Board also maintains oversight of our performance and ensures that our management is acting in accordance
with our slrategy and plan. They alsq identify. evaluate. manage. and mitigate any risks we face Detais of these
are covered on pages 12 and 13

Principal decisions

0On 25 March 2020, the UK Governmant announced a nationat lackdown in response lo the corona virus {COVID-
18) pandermic. The lockdown included a stay-at-home order and the banned non-gssentiai travel  The Board
considered the lackdown rules and guidance and determined thal the majority ot its workiorce can work remotely
Further fynding was made available to the imvestment in 1T equipment to aid better remate working The Board
approved Nexibie working for colleagues that couid work from home and ensured essential travet documentation be
made available for colleagues that were required to travel

The Group has invested in the development of new technologres 1o improve tite service delvery across the entire
organisation The Board considers snnavation of better technalogies ta be a key prianty where il can enhance the
service delivery of aur operational teams and streamline processes to make them more efficient As a result. the
Board approved further investment in ts digial pragramme

During the year, opportunities to acquire new businesses into the Group have been presented to the Board. The
Board takes into consideration their direcler's duties notably their duty to promote the success of the business,
when evaluating acquistion oppartunities Other key cansiderations are factored in. such as detecouning whethar
new opportunities can provide complimentary growth to the Group's exisling service offerings
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Cur People

Our empioyees are ceniral to the 1ong-term success of the Group and as such. the board ensures it has means of
engaging to understand their views and interests  During the COVID-19 pandemic. to protect our empioyees and
comply with rationat faw. the Group made the decision to allow the majority of its workforce to work from home and
provided further investment in remate woarking technologies. Our main offices were assessed by our Health &
Safely team and made avalable and compliant vith social distancing rules for those emplayees who required
access The Group intends to maintain flexibiity with remate working to allow colleagues te choose how ihey wish
to wark

A section dedicated {o Our People is included in the monthly Board report to ensure the Board is regularly updated
on key employee matters  Core topics n the report for Beard consideration include employee relaticns, absences
and employee turnover, training and development. communications. employee profiles. and Glassdoor ratings For
2020 some key infermation around furlcugh and COVID-19 absences was also included to assess the overail
impact of the pandemic lo employees Ths provides the Board with reqular updates and trends on key people
metrics and gives comfort that the people strategy s being well recesved beth internally ang externally

Durning the COVID-19 pandemic, to protect our employees and comply with national law. the Group made the
decision to allow the majonly of its warkforce to wark from home and provided further investment in remote working
technologies Qur man offices were assessed by our Health & Safely team and made available and compliant with
social distancing rules for those employees who required access  Following employee surveys held in 2020 that
yielded a favourable view towards iong term flexible working. the Board decided to reduce office space and
mamtain the new way of workings post COVID-19

Development of new technologies continued throughout 2020 and the roil out of this in 2021 will have a significant
impact 1o emptayees. both in terms of advanced operationai systems and new ways of working  Regular
communications from the CEQ have 1aken place in recent years to keep employees updated with plans and
progress with Q&A sessions held 1o ensure twe-way feedback that can be circulated 1o the Board  An external
company. Storyleliers. was also engaged so that senior managers could help bring 1o life the FirstPort way in an
engaging and mieractive manner for employees These sessions were held for all team members and feedback
given back 1o the Board via senicr leadership meetings. Roll out plans have been determined by emplayee
feegback on business readiness, and the Boarg not wanting to put undue strain on the workforce

M&A opportunities are generally confidentiat by nature. however the Board gains assurance of these decisions from
an employee perspective through a semor due dilgence team that are close o the operations An assessment on
culture and lang term fit of any potentral M&A oppettunities s also carried ou te gain comfart no major conflicts will
anse Following a detaied due diligence process. a presentation and repart is submitted 1o the Boarg summarising
findings. allowing the Board to make an informed decision based on what is best for beth Group and its employees

The Group aims o ensure everyone 1 treated fairly and equitably and there are arrangements in place to prevent
discrnimination in the workplace. A dedicated HR team is availabie to support employeas and there is a dedicated
whislleblowing hothine if an empioyee wishes to raise a serious mailter, this can be done anonymously. Any matters
arising from any whistleblowing is recorded in cur whistleblowing register and reviewed by the Risk & Gavernance
Commillee, a sub-committee of the Executive Management Board.

The Group understands the importance of wellbeing especially during this unprecedenled year. All of our
employees have access to our Employee Assistance Programme, which 1s managed by an independent third party,
as well as infernal colleagues trained as Mental Health First Aiders  Dwring COVID-19, regular commumicabions
and additional support have been provided ta employees across the business. from sharing information on availabie
menial health resources to tips for home-schooling parents

Qur e-learning piatfarm includes traming modules designed to make sure we atict 1n a lawful and compliant way
while conducting day lo day duties, this includes data privacy. anti-bribery and anti-maney (aundering, modern
slavery and health and safety fegislaton For high risk topics, employees are required 10 complete this training
annually To support employee growth online training modides also cover a range of development topics. from
becoming a great leader through to how to mentor and coach others

Please refer to pages & and 7 for more information about our employees and our people management approach
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Community and environment

We are commilted 1o reducing cur carbon footprint and environmental impact and are reviewing our CO2
emissions annualy. in 2020, t\he Carbon Trust evaluated our carbon footprint and validated the carbon reporting
figures under 150 14064-3.

As a business we aiso recognise the importance of contributing to wider society, During 2020, we continued to
support a national youth homelessness charity, Centrepoint  The charity provides homeless yourg people with
accommuodation, health support and lite skills in order to get them back into education, training. and employment.

Corporate governance and reputation of high standards of business conduct

In 2020. we worked with externial advisors to carry out a gap analysis of our overall corporate govemance
structure. including environmentat and social gavernance The Wates Corporate Governance Principles (the
‘Wates Principles’} for large private companes have been used to benchmark the Group's governance slructure
The Board will continue to work towards improving ils corporate governance praclices n fine with the Wates
Principles and drive to meet these standards

Our purpose and our operating model provide the key elements of how the Group maintains a reputation for high
standards of business conduct.

Further details are provided on page 7 and page 14

Stakeholder engagement

Qur Board ensures thal positive stakeholder engagement exists al all levels across the business. and that
decisions put customers frst  However, with a wide stakeholder base that includes customers. chents, supplers,
employees. and society more widely. decisions aiso take all of these audiences into account

The Board will sometimes engage dwectly with key stakeholders on certain issues bul the size and disfribution of
our stakeholdess and our Group means that stakeholder engagement oflen lakes place sl an operational level

Senior management hold monthly meetings with key clients to review our services in their respective ponfolios
This enables us to highlight any issues raised by ous clients and take action transparently  The Board 1s regularly
updated by senor management on the progress of any matters raised i the client engagement meetings

The Board considers and discusses nformation from across the organisation to help it understand the impact of
the Group's operations and the interests and wiews of key stakeholders | also reviews siralegy. financial and
operatonal pedformance, as weil as key risks and regulatory comphance This information 15 provided to the
Board through reports sent in advance of each Board meeting and via presentations.

The Board understands the importance of developing and mamtaning good relatonship with the Group's supply
chain  Due to the rature of the sennces we offer. we have a dverse mix of large national suppfiers and local
suppliers Whilst engagement with aur supgliers mainly takes place at an operatonal level through our
centralised procurement team. any developrments which cauld materially impact the organisation are reposted
back ta the Board. The Board will also review and approve key material contiacts with its supply chain

Customer research s conducted with both resdential customers and resident management company directars ta
ensure the business undefstands what's mpartant to these stakeholders

The business continuas to proaclvely engage with key stakehgiders an the building and fire safety chaflenges
facing leaseholders across the country. including engaging with Government to try and find practcal solutions for
homeowners, as well as working with chents. supplers and customers to held remediate buildings  In the Iight of
the unprecedented. challenging circumsiances these customers are facing we are pleased to have announced o
early 2021 a no-profit pledge committing ta only recover our costs on our wark supporting customers whase
buddings are bewng ramediated via the Government s nan-ACM cladding replacement fund
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Engagementin action

Over the year we held

Internal staff committee meetings and waorking with third parly experts to discuss health and safety and the
ways it can be improved across both the business and the developments in our care  The findings were
presented back to the Board who approved the farmation of 2 new building safety team to deal with
developments that fall under the new regulatory requirements

Aninformal forum to discuss environmenta! and sustainability intratives  This led to the setup of an ESG
committee made up of employees in relevant departments. Updales to the Board are provided through the
Board report with approval sought where appropriate

Regular engagement between aur executive members and all employees through recorded and live videos.
an internal social media systern and a virtual company conference accessible for ail employees to view and
provide feedback on The Beard approved the first virtual conference in 2020 which was weli receved and
provided a greatl feedback loop to caplure employee sentiment. especially in such unprecedented tmes

A survey with our employees around flexible working patterns and engaged with specific office based staff
that were smpacted by our reduced office foot-print, to ensure the majonty were supportive of the measures
we undertook along with the future plans of their working environment  The clear preference from emplayees
was to maintain a flexible approach therefore measures to enable this were approved by the Board

Monthly meetngs with key clients with their progress reported back to the executive management team and
Board of Directors  The meetings have allowed our service maodel and proposition to evolve with gur
customer s needs and continue to improve our service offering in the market.

Meetings with key supphers to review service levels to ensure good service delivery performance during the
COVID-18 natonal lockdown These provided better understanding for suppfiers around our business and
goals, enabling a mutually benehcial sustanable relationship They also gave suppliers the opportumity to
showcase where else they may be able to support us  Key updates were provided in Board meetings

Customer interviews conducted by a specialist market research agency o shape customer service delivery
and improvements The interview helped reshape some of the decision-making processes in cur Digital
platform to ensure we cater for customer requirements  Digital was a hot Board topic throughout 2021

Shareholders

Our mayority sharehelder appeinted two Non-executive directors to the Board, who contribute to the stralegic
direchan of the Group

QOuda Saleh
Director
30 Apni 2021

20



DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

The directars prasent their annual report and the audited consolidated financial stalements for the year ended 31
Decemper 2020

Principai activities

The principal actvity of the Group is the provision of residential property management and related services within
the UK. and that of the company is investment management Activites in its trading business. FirstPort. has baen
exptained in the Strategic Report on page 2

Directors

The dyectors who held office dunng the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
foltows:

P J Lester {appoinied on 16 January 2020;

M Howsell

O Saleh

T A Swales

I G Boman-Flavelt {appaintad on 13 February 2020)
D K Young fappointed on 26 November 2020
S Leusch (resigned on 13 February 2020}

Directors’ insurance

The group mantains insurance polcies on behalf of all the directors agamst habity ansing from negligence.
breach of duty and breach of trusl in relation to the group This s a qualifying third party indemnity provision made
for the benefit of its directors during the year, These grovisions remain in force at the reporting date

Results and dividends

The results for the year are set out in the consolidated profit and loss actount on page 27 No ordinary dividends
were paid The directors do not recemmend payment of a further dividend

Empioyees

Information on employees is included in the Strategic Report on pages 6 and 7. Further information on employee
engagement is included in the 5172 (1) statement in the Strategic Report on page 18

Disabled persons

Information on disabled persons is included in the Strategic Report on pages 6 and 7

Stakeholder engagement and principal decisions

Infarmation on stakeholder engagement and prnapal decisians is ncluded wn the $172 (1) statement in the
Strategic Repoert on page 17 and pages 19 and 20

Future developments

The future developments of the business are discussed in the Strategic Report on page 8
Financial risk management

Infarmation on financial sk management is included in the Strategic Report on page 15
Going Concem

Information or gaing coacern is Included in note 1 4 on page 35

21



DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Statement of directors' responsibitities in respect of the financial statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financiat statements in accordance with
apphcable faw and regulation

Company law requires the directors 1o prepare financial statéments for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepated the group and company knancal slatements in accordance with Uniled Hingdom
Generally Accepted Accaunting Practice (Umited Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The
Fingncial Reporting Standard appiicable in the UK and Repubiic aof frefand”, and apphicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that
pefiod. In preparnng the hinancial staterments, the directors are required to

* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* siate whether appiicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102, have been followed
subject to any matetial departures disclesed and explained in the financial statements.
*  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent. and
« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 15 inappropriate {o presume that the
group and company will coptinué in business
The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities
The directors are respansible for keeping adequate acceounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the

group’s and company’s transactions and disciose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial position of the
group and company and enable them fo ensure that the financial statements compty with the Companies Act 2008

Directors’ confirmations
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ feport 1s approved

* 5o far as the director is aware, there 15 no relevant audit information of which the group's and company's
auditors are unaware, and

* they have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken as a dwector in order to make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and te estabhsh that the group's and company's auditors are aware of that
informaltion

Ouda Saleh
Directar
30 Aprii 2021
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS QOF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In gur apinian Drive Topcee Limited's group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial
statemerts”):

. gwe a true and far view of the state of the group's and of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and
of the group’s loss and the group’s cash flows for the year then ended:
have been praperly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of lreland”, and applicable law): and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compamigs Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements. included within the Annual Report and Financral Statements {the "Annuai
Report’). which comprise. consohidated and company batance sheet as at 31 December 2020, the consohdated
prafit and loss account and consoldated statement of comprehensive income. the consolidated cash flow
statement, andg the consoiidated and company slatements of changes in equity for the year then ended: and the
notes to the hnancial statements. which include a description of the significant accounting policies

Basis for opinion

We conducted our auddt i accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditng (UK) { 15As (UK) ) and applicable
law Qur responsibitlies under 1SAs (UK) are further descnbed i the Auditors’ responsibitties for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report We beheve that the audt ewdence we have oplamed s sufficient and
appropriate te provide a basis for our cpimon

independence

We remained mdependent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are reievant 1o our audit of
the financial statements 1n the UK. which includes the FRC's Ethicat Standard and we have fuffiltled our other
ethical responsipiiies in accordance with these reguirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern
Our evaivation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and the company's ability to comtinue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting included

*  Audting the integrity of the underiying formulas and calcuiations within the going concerm model;
* Assessing the appropriateness of the cash flow forecasts m the context of the Group's 2020 financial
parformance and the acquisitions made 1n the year, and evaluating the separate downside scenario

* Evaluating the key assumptons in the forecasts {which were cansistent with the forecasts used to assess
goodwil}

¢ Testing the foracast revenue and EBITDA figures with reference to the additional amaunts contributed by the
acqusitions made assumed efficiencies from the acquisttions and other projects and assumptions made in
ralation to price and churn,

* Comparirg the pnor year forecasts agamst current year aclual performance to assess management's abihty
to forecast accurately particularly in the penod before Covid-19 but also considening the perfermance of the
Group since the first lackdown on 23 March 2020 and

¢ Obtaining and reperforrming the Group's forecast covenant complance calculations, including sensitising the
profits and cash flows as apphcable for each covenant to assess the potential impact of our downside
sensitivities on cavenant compliance
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Based on the work we have performed. we have not Wdentified any material uncertainties relating to events or
condtions that. individually or coilectively, may cast significant doub! on the group’s and the company’s ability to
conhnue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are
authansed for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have cancluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate

However. because nat all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the
group's anc company's abiity to conbinue as a going concesn

Qur responsiblities and the respansibiities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant secticns of this report

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annuai Report other than the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon The directors are responsibie for the other information Gur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the otber information and. accordingly, we do not axpress an audit opinion or, except to
the extent otherwise explictly stated in this report. any farm of assurance therean.

In cannechion with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infoermation and, in
gomg so. consider whether the other information 1s materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowiledge obtaned in the audd. or otherwise appears to be materally misstated. If we dentfy an apparent
matenal inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
1s a matenal misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other infarmation f based
on the work we have performed we conclude that there 15 8 mateniat misstatement of this other informaton we
are reguired to report that fact We have nothing te report based on these responsibilibes

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors” Report. we also considered whether the disciosuras raquired
by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit 1SAs (UK)
require us also ta report certain opinians and matters as described below

Strategic Report and Direclors” Report

In our opinion. based an the work undertaken i the course of the audit the information given in the Strategic
Report and Diractors’ Report for the year ended 31 Cecember 2020 1s consistent with the financiai statements and
has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

I light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their envitonment obtained in the
course of the audit we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financral stalements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors' responsibilities in respect of the financiat statements. the
directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordante with the applicable
framework and for being sansfied that they give a true and far view. The directors are also responsible for such
internal cantrol s they determine is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or error.

In prepanng the hnancial slatements, the drrectors are responsible for assessing the group's and the company's
abilly to cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the
going cancern basis of accounting unfess the directars either mtend to liguidate the group or the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but (o do so.
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED {CONTINUED)

Auditors” responsihilities for the audit of the financial staternents

Our ahysclives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement whether due to fraud or erfor. and to issue an auditors' report that includes pur opinion
Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with 1SAs (UK) will aiways detect a materisl misstatement when it exists Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered matenal if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the econamic decisians of users taken on the basis of thesa financial statements

Irregularifies including fraud are instances of non-complance with laws and reguiations We design procedures n
line with our responsibiities. outined above. to detect matenal misstatements in respect of sregulanties, including
fraud The extent 1o which our procedures are capable of dateching irreguianibes, including fraud, is detaled below

Based on our understanding of the group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compiiance with
laws and regulations related to breaches of employment faws. health and safety regu'alions. data protechon. tax
legisiation and the Internatonal stock exchange listing rules . and we considered the aexient to which non-
campliance might have a maternal effect on the financial statements. We also cansidered those laws and regulations
that have a diect impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2008 We evaiusted
Managsment's incentives and opportunites for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk
of override of controls). and determined that the principal nsks were related to the posting of inappropriate journal
entries and management bias in accounting (udgments and estmates to enhance EBITDA Audii procedures
performed included

+  Discussions with management including consideration of known or suspected instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations and fraud.

s Challenging assumptions made by management in relation to areas of judgment and significant accounting
eslimates. including the classification of costs as exceptionat, the captalisation af intangible assets and the
valuation of identified intangibles arising from the acquisition accounting for the twa acquistions made within
the year,

« Testing journal entnes meeting set nsk criteria, in particular any journal entries posted with unexpected
account cambinatans resulting 0 a cradit entry ta revenue ar cost. journal entries containing unusual words
and any Journals posted by senior management;

* Incorporating elements of unpredictabiity into the audit procedures performed. in particuiar over supplier
bank details, and

* Review of board minutes throughout the year and legal costs incurred to understand it these are indicative of
any wider non-compliance or fraud matters

There are inherent kmitatrons in the audit procedures described above We are less hkely to beceme aware of
instances of non-compliance with laws and reguiations that are nol closely related lo evenls and transaclions
reflected 1n the financial statements Alsa. the risk of not detecung a3 matenial misstatement due o fraud is higher
than the nsk of not detecting one resulting from error as fraud may involve deliperate conceaimant by for example
forgery or ntentional misrepresentations. or through collusion

A further description of our responsibifities for the audht of the financial statements is located on the FRG's website
at www fre org ukiauditarsresponsibilties This description forms part of ouf auditors’ report

Use of this repont

Thus report. including the cpinions. has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compamies Act 2008 and for no other purpose We da not, 1n giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our priof consent in writing
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporsting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required o report {o you if. in our opinian
* we have nptreceived a¥ the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

* adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the company. or returns adeguate for our audit have
not been received fram branches not visited by us. or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made. or

+ the company financial statements are not 1 agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no axceptions to report arising from this responsitility

o

Diana Walmsley (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
tandon

30 April 2021
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DRIVE TOPCO LIiMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Turnover
Cast of sales

Gross profit
Admunistrative expenses

Administrative expenses - exceplional tems

Other operating income

Operating loss

Intetest payable and simidar axpenses

Loss befare taxation
Tax on loss

Loss for the year / period

Note

13

15

Year ended
31 December 2020
£000 £000
86,786
{2.824)
83,862
(83.543)
(2. 784)
66.327)
672
{1.693)
{11.7498)
{13.442)
(636)
(14.078)

7 month period ended
31 December 2019

E'000

{19.516)
{2.123)

£000
19.401

18 401

{21.639)

(2.238)
(3.429)

{5.667)
{72)

(5.739)
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Loss for the financia) year / period

Other comprahensive Income

Total comprehensive expense for the year ! period

Total comprefensive expense for the year / penod alinbutable to
- Owners of the parent

Tatal comprehensive expense for the year ! period

Year ended

31 Pecember 2020

7 month period ended

31 December 2015

£'000 £'000
(14.073) (5739)
{14,078} (5,739
(14,078} (5.739)
(14.078; (5.738)
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Fixed assets
intengible assets
Tangible assets

Current assets

Deblors

Investment properties hefd for resale
Cash at bank and n hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year

Net currertt habifites

Total assets less current fiabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due after
mote than one year

Provision for liabilities
Net liabilities

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Treasury shares
Accumulated losses

Total equity

Note

16
17

20

22

23

25

8
28
28

2020

£'000 £000
153,339

2.781

166.119

3.871
187
7.585
16.643
(24.588)

(7.945)

158,174
(162.106)

(148.6873)
(19.605)

1

144

{1

119.749)

(19.80%)

The notes on pages 34 to 74 are an integra! part of these financial stalements

2019
£'900 £'900
119 000
3191
122,111
5313
187
4,558
10 058
(13,746
(3.688})
116.423
{113.915)
10,153}
(5.645)
1
93
(5.739)
(5.645)

The financial statements on pages 27 to 74 were authorised for issue by the board of directors and authorised for

issue on 30 April 2021 and are ssgnad on its behalf by

Cuda Saleh
Director




DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020 2019
Note £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Fixed assets
Invesiment in subsidiaries 18 162 94
162 94

Current assets
Debtors 20 218 -
Cash at bank and m hand 5 -

323 -
Creditors: amounts falling due within
one year 22 (268} -
Net current assels 54 -
Total assets less current liabilities 216 94
Creditors: amounts faifing due after
more than one year 23
Nel assets 218 94
Capital and reserves
Called up share capita! 28 1 k]
Share prernium account 28 144 93
Treasury shares 2 (1} -
Share based payment reserve 28 68 -
Retained earnings 4 -
Total equity 216 a4

o} —ertet

The company made a profit of £4k during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019 i}

For the year ending 31 December 2020, the company was entitied to exemprion under section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006 from presenting its individual profit and loss account

The notes an pages 34 to 74 are an integral part of these financial statements

The financial statemants on pages 27 ta 74 were authonsed for issue by the board of direclors and authonised for
issue on 30 Aprif 2021 and are signed on ifs behalf by

Duda Sateh
Director

Drive Topeo Limited
Registered no. 12043001
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ORIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Called up Share Treasury Accumulated Total
share premium shares losses equity
Note capital
£'000 £000 £9000 £'000 £'000
Balance at 11 June 2019 - - . - -
Period ended 31 December 2019:
i.oss for the period and total comprehensive expense
for the pericd
_ . {5.729) (5.739)
Tatal transactian with owners, recarded directly
to equity
lssue of shates 28 t 9 - 94
Total cantributions by and distabutions (o owaers
1 a3 - 94
Batance a1 31 December 2019 ] a3 - 5739 {5,645}
Year ended 31 Decamber 2020
Loss for the year and total comprehensive expense
for the year - (14.078)  (14.078)
Total transaction with owners, recorded directly
to equity
Credit relating to equity-settled share-based paymeutts 14 - - [52:3 1)
Issue of shares (27.075 of £0.01 ordinary shares) 28 - 48 - - 48
lssue of shares ta EBT (2,000 of £0.01 ardinary shares) 28 - 3 (%) - -
Acquisthon of shares by EGT 2B - - 4 - 4
Setiement of shares by EBT members 28 ] - B
Fotal contributions by and distributions 1o bvners
N 51 {13 68 118
Balance at 31 December 2020 1 144 {1} (19749} (19.605)
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Balance at 11 June 2019

Pesiog pnded 31 Becember 201%:
Results for the hnancial penod

Total transaction with owners, recorded directiy to
equity

{ssue of shares

Total contnbutions by and disinbutions (o awners

Balance at 31 December 2018

Year ended 31 December 2020:

Profit for the year

Total transaction with cwners, recorded directly to
equity

Credd relating to equity-setiled share-based payments
Issue of shares {27 075 of £0 D3 oprdinary shares)
tssue of shares to EBT {2,000 of £8 &1 ordinary shares)
Acquisition of shares by EBT

Setllernent of shares by EBT members

Total contrtbutions by and cistiibutions o owners

Balance at 31 December 2020

Note

28

28
28

28
25

Caffed up Share Treasury Share Retained Total

share premium shares Basaed earnings aquity
capital Payment
Reserve

£ E'000 £'000 £'ooa £'000 £000

1 93 - 94

1 93 - . 94

1 93 - - 94

- - - 4 4

- - 58 68

- 48 . - 48

3 (3} - N

- - [} - - CH]

- [ - [

- 51 (1 5B 118

1 1a4 (1) 68 5 218
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

Year ended
31 December 2020

Note £000 E'G00
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated / (used) in operations 36 12.214
Tax pad {65)
Net cash generated / {used) in operating activities 12.149
Cash fiows from investing activities
Purchase of subsihanas net of cash acguired 3 {36 9685)
Purchase of intangible assets {7.881)
Purchase of tangible assels (975)
Net cash used in investing activities (45.821)
Cash flows from financing activities
lssue of shares &4
Issue of sharehoider loans 10,3895
interest paid (5,380}
Drawdown of bank facibly 33,500
Loan arrangement fees {1.867)
Repayments undec finance lease .
Het cash generated from finarncing activities 36,699
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3027
Cash and cash aquivalents at beqinning of the year / period 4. 558
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year / period 7.585
Cash and cash aqguivalents consists of:
Cash at bank and in hand 7.585

7 month period ended
31 Oecember 2018

£'000 £'000
(11,528
{282)

(11,810}
(31.262)
(2.399)
(424)

(34,085}
94
51,038
(620}
(57}

50,453

4.558

4558

4558
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PRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.1

1.2

1.3

Accounting policies

Genera! information

Drive Topco Limited ("the Company™). incorporated on 11 June 2019, and 1ts subsidiaries (iogethar "the
Group”) provides residental property management and related services. and safely and wellbeirg services,
within the United Kingdam The main business operates as FirstPort which is the Jarges! residential property
management business in the UK with a core serwce offenng organised around six customer/market
segments Luxury, Large and Complex, Property Services, Estates Buid to Rent and Retirement In addition
to its core offerings. FustPort also provides specialist independent retirement estate agency services.
insurance products, and residential iettings

The comgany 15 & privale cornpary hmited by shares and 1s incorporaled in the United Kingdom and
registered n England The address of its ragistered office 15 Queensway House 11 Queensway, New
Milten, Hampsiwre, UK, BH25 5NR

Statement of compliance

The Group and indwiduat financial statements of Drive Topco Limied have been prepared in compliance
with United Kingdom Accounting Standards including Financial Reparting Standard 102 "The Financial
Reporting Standard applcable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of lreland” ("FRS 1027) and the
Companies Act 2006

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting poiicies apphed In the preparatian of these cansolidated financial statements are
sat out below The accounting policies have been applied consistently other than where new policies have
been adopted

Basis of preparation

These consohdated and separate company hinancial stalements are prepared on a going concern basis.
under the historical cost convention

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management lo exeicise its judgement v the process of applying the Group and Company's
accounting pobcies The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or comgplexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in note 2
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

14

1.5

Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern

The Group manages ils day-to-day working capdal requirements through its bark facilites. The ability of the
Group to service its debt obligations is critical to the ongoing trading of the busmess and we have
consdered the key factors that could have an impact on trading and whether an adverse change in thess
factors could affect our atihty to meel our fiabililes The Group has a considerable number of on-going
management contracts in FastPort, and accordingly the Group's forecasts and projechons. taking account of
reasonably possible changes m trading performance. show that the Group should be able to operate within
the level of its current faciities

As part of assessing the ability to canlinue as a going concern, the Group has also considered the angoing
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and any related patential ecanomic downturn on its business During this
assessment management conducted varous scenaric gnalysis with sufficient depth and duration.
considenng different leveis of revenue reduction, working capita) implications and mitigating actions
avaiiabie 10 management in 2020 the impact of COVID-19 was felt in the Group's transactional revenue
inegs which is rehant on the property market This involves the Group's letings and resales services
Management have created a "severe” downside scenano which modelled the effect of reductions 1o revenue
up to June 2022. Thae mode! assumed that all transachonal revenue will be lost and no cost reduction efforts
would be made [n s "severe” scenang. sufficient hguadity and headroom on the Group's covenants were
demonstrated Even though the COVID-19 pandenvc has presented a high level of uncertainty {o all
busingsses, FirstPort operates as a resment busmess and has the capabiliies to continue to operate for the
foreseeable fulure and for at least the period of lwelve manths following the date of approval of these
fingncial statements The Group generated cash in 2020 and ended the year with £7 585k cash with an
unutiised £7 Sm revolwing credd faciity

Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

FRS 102 gllows a qualifyng enhity certain disclosure exemptions. subject to certain conditions. winch have
been complied with. including notfication of. and no objection to, the use of exemptions by the Cempany's
shareholders. The Company has taken advantage of the following exemptions

{3} from preparing a statement of cash flows, on the bamis that it s a guabfying entity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows, included in these financial statements includes any cash flows
of the Company,

() from the financial insttument disclosures required under FRS 102 paragraphs 11 41(B). 11.41(c}.
11.410e). 11 41(f) 1142 1144, 1145 1147 11 48{aj(in). 11 48{al(v} 11.48(b;. 1148(c) 1226
1227, 12 29ta). 12 29(b) and 12 29A. as the information is provided in the consolidated financial
statement disclesures,

from disciosing ihe Company key management personnel compensation. as requied by FRS 102

) paragraph 33 7. as the formation 1s prowvided w the consolidated financial statement disclosures

The company has (aken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act from

) presenting its individual profit and loss accaunt
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DRIVE TOPCO LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.6

17

Accounting policies (continued)

Audit exemption of subsidiaries

Drive Topco Limited has provided a legaf guarantee under s479A-C of the Companies Act 2006 to the below
subsidiaries for audit exemption.

Company Registration number
Drve Bidco Limited 12043128
Knight Square Holdings Limited 07925023
Knight Mideo Limited 07927619
Knight Square Limited 07925019
FirstPort Lirmited 04352396
FirstPort Bespoke Property Services 016234596
FirstPort Insurance Services Limited 03479579
FirstPart Property Services Limited 02681041
FirstPort Property Services No 2 Limited 02231168
FirstPort Property Services No 4 Limited 07259764
FirstPort Property Services No 5 Limited 05876680
FirstPort Property Services Scotland 03829468
FirstPort Retirement Propesty Services Limited 01614868
Retirement Homesearch Limited 03829469
Mainstay Group Limited 04002715
Mainstay Faciliies Mapagement Limited 03340310
Mainstay Residential Limited 04052477
Chamaonix Holdings 12500321
Chamonix Group Limited 05856372
Chamonix Estates Limited 05851267
Fairfield Company Secretaries Linuted 05988785

Basis of consolidation

The Group's consolidated financial statements inciude the financia statements of the Company and all of is
subsidiary undertakings made up to 31 December.

A subsidiary 1s an entity controfled by the Group Control 1s the power ta govern the financial and operating
policies of an enlity sa as to obtain benefits from its activiies The results of subsidiary undertakings are
incfuded in the consolidated financial statements from the date control is obtained untit the date control
ceases Where a subsidiary has different accounting policies to the Group. adjustments are made to those
subsidiary financial statements to apply the Group’s accounting policies when prepanng the consolidated
financial statements

An assocrate is an entity being neither a subsidiary nor a jaint venture, in which the Group holds a long-term
interast and where the Group has significant influence The Group consders that it has significant influence
where it has the power to participate in the financial and gperating decistans of the asscciate  The results of
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consohdation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

1.7

18

1.9

Accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation {cantinued)
Where the group has established employee benefit tusts (EBT) and is the sponsoring entty

notwithstanding the legal duties of the trustees. the group considers that it has ‘de facto’ contral of such

entities. Such arrangements are accounted for as assets and labilities of the sponsoring company and
ncluded n the consolidated financial statements as appropnate The company’s equity instruments held by
the EBT are accountad for as if they were the company's own equity and are treated as treasury shares No
gain or loss is recogmsed in proft or loss or ather comprehensive income an the purchase. sale or
cantellation of the company's own equity held by the EBT.

Functional and presentation currency
The Greup financal slatements are presented in pound sterling and rounded to thousands The Company's
functional and presentation currency is pound sterling

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable and represents the
amount recaivable for goods suppled or services rendered net of discounts and rebates allowed by the
Group and vatue added taxes

The Group recognises revenue when (a) the significant nsks and rewards of awnership have been
transferred to the buyer; (b) the Group retains no continuing involvement in or control over the goods; (c) the
amount of revenue can be measured rehably, (d} it 1s probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
enhity and (e) when the specific critena relating to each of the Group's sales channels have been met 3s
describzd below

Revenue for the key services provided by the Group is recogrised as foliows
{iy Residential and commercial property management services

Fees for residenual and commercial property management services. including mawmlenance, are recognised
as the Group's abligations under the applicable contracts are delivered ta the custamer which 1s typically an
a straight-line basis over the period of the contract

(i Other revenue

Commissions earned on the placing of insurance products on behalf of third parties are recognised when the
Group has completed ils services under the arrangements which 1S the inception date of the underlying
insurance peoiicy. Any commission adjustments for additionat and return premiums are recognised as they
oceur

Fees for real estate agency and property transfer services are recagnised on completan of the celated
property sale Fees for residental lettings arranged by the Group are recognised on execution of binding
rental contracts between fandlord and tenant

{iy  Recharge of house managers’ employment cost

Amounts cotected frorm customers in relation to the empioyment of house managers and deputies to
oversee mndividual developments managed by the Group are recogmsed as net of cost, where recharges
equal costs incurred The Group s considered to be an agent as i does not have exposure to significant
nsks and rewards associated with the rendering of these services
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1

1.10

Accounting policies {continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at the fawr value of the asset recewved or recevable when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant conditions will be met and the grants will be received

The Group adopts the accrual moedel relating to Government grants Government grants relating to turnover
are recognised as income over the periods when the related costs are incurced

Exceptional items

The Group classifies certain non-recurring charges or credds in a financial period that are not part of the
underiying trading business. that have a matena! impact (by size or nature) on the Group's financial results
as '‘exceptional items’ These are disclosed separately to show the underlying trading of the Grougp.

Employee benefits

The Group provides a range of benefils to employees. including annual bonus arrangements paid hohday
arrangements and defined contribution pension plans.

0] Shart-term benefis

Short-term benefits Including holiday pay and other similar non-monetary benefits, are recognised as an
exgpense In the peried In which the service is received. An accrual 1s recagnised at the balance sheet date
for any matenal remaining obligations to employess

(il Defined contribution pensian plans

The Group cperates a number of country-specific defined contribution plans for s employees A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contnbutions into a separate entity
Once the contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment obligations The contributions are
recognised as an expense when they are due Amounts not paid are shown in accruals in the balance sheet
The assets of the plan are held separately from the Group in independently admimistered funds

(i} Annual bonus pian

The Group operates annual bonus plans for employees An expense 15 recognised in the prefit and loss
account when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation to make payments under the plans as a result
of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
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Accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments

From tme to time. the Group makes equity setlled share-based payment awards te employses of subsidiary
undertakings

In the Group financial statements, the fair value of the awards at the date of grant 15 charged to the profit or
loss over the vesting perod with a corresponding increase In eqguity being recognised through retained
armINgs

In the Company financial statements. the obligation to setle the transaction with the employees of
subsichiary undertakings 1s recogrised as a capital contribution made to those subsidiaries by increasing the
cost of investment in subsidiary undertakings as the subsidiaries recogrises the charge for share based
payment awards in profit or loss

Non-market vesting condiions are taken o accoumt by adjusting the numbes of esquity mnsiruments
expected to vast at each balance sheet date so that ultimately, the cumlative amount recagrised over the
vesting pericd is based on the value of awards that eventually vest Non-vesting conditions and market
vesting cohditions are factored into the far value of the awards granted As long as aii other vesting
condiions are satsfied a charge 15 made to profit or loss irrespective of whether any market vesting
condibions are satisfled The cumuiative expense s not adjusted for faifure to achieve a market vesting
condition or where a non-vesting condition 1s not salished

Taxation

Taxatian expense for the perod carmprses current and deferred tax recogrised in the reporting period. Tax
is recognised in the profit and loss account. except to the extent that it relates o items recogrised i other
comprehensive income or directly in equity in which case the related tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive iIncome or directly in equily respectively

Current or deferred {axation assets and habihties are not discounted
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Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation {continued)
{n Current tax

Current tax 15 the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the period Tax 1s
calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year
end. Management perodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations n which
applicable tax regulation 15 subject to nterpretation It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected o be paid to the tax authorities

{1} Deferred tax

Deferred tax arnses from tming differences that are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive :ncome as stated in the financial statements. These timing differences arise from the
inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods dferent from those in which they are
recognised in the financial siatements. Deferred tax s alsc recognised n relation to assets and liabilites
acquired in a business combination where the amount that will be deducted or assessed for tax differs to the
fair value at which the asset or liabilty 15 recognised on acquisition in the financial statements The tax base
of an asset or liabiity rs determined based on the expected manner of recovery Investment properties and
land are deemed to have recovery via disposal and accordingly the UK capital gams regime is applied when
estimating the tax base of these assets

Deferred tax 1s recognised on all tming differences at the reporting date Unrelieved tax losses and other
deferred tax assets are only recognised when it 1s probable that they will be recavered agasnst the reversal
of deferred tax labilities or other future taxahie profits

Deferred tax 1s measured using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
year end and that are expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there s a legally enforceable nght to offset current tax
assets and liabilties and when the deferred tax assets and habilities arnise from income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where therg is an ability
and infention to settle the balances at the same tme.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase methad.

The cost of a business combination 1s the fair value of the consideration given, liabilities incurred or
assumed and of equity instruments issued plus the costs directly attrbutable to the business combination
Where control 15 achieved in stages the cost is the consideration at the date of each transaction

On acquisition of a business, far values are attnibuted fo the identihable assets labiites and contingent
labilities uniess the fair value cannat be measured reliably. in which case the value is incorporated in
goodwill Where the fair value of contingent liabilities cannot be rehably measured they are disciosed on the
same basis as other cantingent liabylities

Goodwill recognised represents the excess of the fair value and direclly atinbutable costs of the purchase
consideration over the fair values of the Group's interest in the identifiable net assets, habilities and
contingent liabilites acquired

On acquisition, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units {CGU's") that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination from which it arose
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Accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill {continued)

Goodwill is amoriised over its expected useful life which is estmated to be twenty years. Goodwill s
assessed for mpairment when thete are indicators of impairment and any impaifment is charged to the
income statement No revarsals of impairment are recogrised

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill

Intangible assets are staled at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated imparment losses.
Intangible assets acquired on business combinations are recogmsed separately from goodwill at the
acquistion date i the (aw value can be measured reliably.

Amartisation 1s calculated. using the straight-line method, to alfocale the depreciable amount of the assets
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives. as follows

Software straight-line over 3 years
Acqguired customer iisfs straight-hine over 2 fo 10 years
Acquired brands straight-fine aver 51c 10 yaars

Amortisation is mcluded 1n admimstrative expenses’ in the proft and foss account

Where factors. such as technological advancement ar changes in market price. indicate that residual value
or useful life have changed the residuai value usefid life or amortisation rate are amended prospectively to
reflect the new circumstances

The assets are reviewed for imparment i the above factors indicale tha! the carrying amount may be
impaired

Costs associated with maintaning compuler software are recognised as an exgense as incurred
Devslopment costs that are directiy aitnbulabte 10 the design and testing of idenbhiable and unique software
products controlled by the Group are recognised as mtangible assets when ihe following criteria are met

* s technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use:

*  management intends to complete the software and use or sel it,

¢ there s an ability to use or sell the software;

* fi can be demonstrated how the saftware will generate probable future gcanomc benefit,

* adequate technical. financial and other resources to camplate the develepment and to use or self the
software are available: and
¢ the expenditure attnibutable to the software during its development can be reliably measured

Otner development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred
Development costs previously recogrised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent
period
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Accounting poficies (continued)

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment iosses Cost
includes the onginal purchase pnce. costs directly attnbutable to bringing the asset te Us working condition
for its \tended use, dismanting and restoration costs

Depreciaiion and residual values

Depreciation on other assels i1s caloulated. using the siraight-ine method, to allocate the depreciable
amaurt to their residual values quer therr estimated usefut lives, as follows

Office equipment, fixtures ang fittings straight-line over 3 to 5 years

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed. and adjusted, if appropriate. at the end of each
reporting penod. The effect of any change is accounted for prospectively

Subsequent additions

Subsequent costs, including major inspections. are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as
3 separate asset, as approprate. only when it s probable that econormic benefits associated with the item
will flow {o the Group ang the cost can he measured reliably

Repairs, maintenance and ming: mspeclion £osis are expensed as ncured
Derecogntion

Yangible assets are derecogmised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected On
disposal, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is recognised in the
profit and loss account and included in other aperating income.

Investment properties, inciuding assets held for sale

The Group's interests in leasehold apartments within residenbal development sites pre classified as
investment properties and included within non-current assets

Investment properties are initially recognised at cost. which for the Group was the fair value from acquisition
i a business combination Subseguent to initial recognition investment properties are recogrused at fair
valug through profit and loss The fair value of investment properties s determined using valuation
techniques 1o estimate their current market values taking into consideration the hming and wnpact of any
encumbrances te sale

From time to time the Group makes selected investment properties available for sale where the demand in a
logapon warranls the cost of marketing and sales. Where the likekhood of sale within the next financial year
is probable. the property s classified as held for resale and included within tufrent assets, and is
recognised at far value less costs to seil

Fixed asset investments

interest in subsidiares, asscciates and jointly controfied entites are intially measured at cost and
subisequently measured at cost less any accumutated impairment losses. The investments are assessed for
imparment at each reporing date and any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are
recognised immediately in profit or loss
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Accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Ali borrowing costs are recognised in the profit and loss acecunt in the perigd 1o which they are incurred

Leased assets

At inception the Group assesses agreaments that lransfer the right to use assets The assessment considers
whether the arrangement is, or contains, a iease based on the substance of the arrangement

Leases of assets that transfer substantially all the nisks and rewards mcidental 1o ownersmp are classified as
finance leases

Finance leases are capitabised at commencement of the lease a5 assets at the fan value of the leased asseal
or. if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments calculated using the interest rate implicit in the
iease Where the implicit rate cannot be determined the campany's incrementa! borrowing rate is used
Incremental direct costs. mcurred n negoliating and arranging the lease, are included in the cost of the
asset

Leases that da not transfer substantiatly all the risks and rewards of ownership are classfied as operating
lpases Payments under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease

Incentives received o enter into an operating lease are credited to the profit and loss account, to reduce the
lease expense. on a straight-line basis over the periad of the lease

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date non-financial assets not carried at faw value are assessed ta determine whether
there 13 an mdication that the asset {or assel's cash-generating unit) may be impaired If there is such an
indication the recoverable amount of the asset (or assets cash-generating unit) is compared to the carrying
amount of the asset (or asset's cash-generating unit} The Group as a whole is consdered to be a cash-
generating unit

The recaverable amount of the asset {or asse{’s cash-generabing unit) is the higher of the fair value fess
costs te sell and value in use. Value in use s defined as tha present value of the future cash flows before
interest and tax obtainable as a result of the asset's (or asset's cash-generatng unit) cantinued use. Thase
cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate thal represents the current market nsk-free cate and
the risks inherent in the asset

If the recaverable amount of the asset (or assel's cash-generating unit) is estmated ta be lower than the
carryng amount, the carrying amount is reduced 10 its recoverable amount An impairment loss is recognises
in the proft and toss account

If an wmpawment (oss 1s subsequently reversed. the carrying amount of the asset {or asset's cash-generating
unit) 15 increased to the revised estimate of #s recoverable amount. but only 1o the exient that the revised
carrying amouni does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation
or amortisation) had no imparment loss been recognised 1n prior years. A reversat of an impairment loss is
recogrised in the profit and loss account. Goodwill 15 affocated on acquisition to the cash-generating unit
expecled to benefit from the synergies of the combinaticn. Goodwill is included in the carrying value of cash-
generating units for impaument testing Aay previous imparment of goodwll is nat reversed
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1.23

1.24

1.25

Accounting policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivaients includes castt in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts whan appropriate are shown within borrowings in current liabiites

For the purpose of the consolidated staternent of cash flows the Group adapts an accounting policy of
classifying interest receipts as an wnvesting cash flow and interest payments as a hnancing cash flow
Taxation cash flows are classified as aperating cash flows

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Groun has a present legal or constructive obligation as a resuit of past
events. it 1s piobable that an outfiow of resources will be required to seitle the obhigation. and the amount of
the obligation can be estimated reliably

Provisions are measured based on the Group's best estimale at the reporting date of the expenditures
expected o be required to setiie the obligation discounted to the present value. where matenal

Financial instruments
The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 31 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of finantial nstruments

U] Financiai assets

Basic financial assets. including trade and other recewvables and cash and bank balances, are initally
recognised at iransaction price. uniess the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction. where the
transaction is measured at the present valye of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interes!
Such assets are subsequently carmed at amortised cost using the effective interest method

At the end of each reporting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective
evidence of imparment If an asset 18 impaired the mpairment loss is the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the estimaled cash flows discounted al the asset's original effective
interest rate The impasment loss s recagrised in profit or loss

If there 1s a decrease in the impairment loss ansing from an evert occurring afier the imparment was
recognised. the impairment is reversed The reversal is such that the current carrying amount does not
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the imparment not previously been recognised The
impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss

Financig! assets are derecogrised when (a) the contractual nghts to the cash flows from the assel expire or
are settled. of {b) substantially all the risks angd rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred fo
another party or (c} despite having retaned some significant risks and rewards of awnerstup. control of the
asset has been transferred to anofher party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the asset fo an
unrelated thid party without imposing additional restristions

(n}  Fimancial labities

Basic financia! ligbilikes including trade and other payables bank loans. lcans from fellow Group
companies and preference shares that are classified as debt, are nutially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transacton. where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a8 market rate of interest

Debt instruments aré subsequently carrad at amartised cost. using the effective interast rate method.
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1.25

1.26

1.27

Accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(i} Fimancial habilities (continued)

Fees pad on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down [n this case, the fee is deferred unti the
draw-down occurs To the extent there 1s no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee 1s capitalised as a pre-payment far [iquidity services and amortised aver the periad of
the facility to which it relates

Trade payables are cblhgatiars to pay far goods ar services that have been acauired in the ordinary Course
of business from suppliers Accounts payable are classified as curren! liabiies if payment i1s due within one
year or iess M not, they are presented as non-current liabilities Trade payables are recognised initiafly at
transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interast method.

Financial liabitites are dersccgnised when the habihty 1s exlinguished thal 1s when the centractual
obhgation s discharged, cancelled or expires

{iiiy Offsetting

Financial assets and labilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recogmsed amounts andg thers 15 an intention to settie on a
netbasis or fo realise the asset and settie the liabiny simuttanecusly.

(v} Chent monies heid

The praperty management services perfarmed by the Group include services provided to residential
management companies and which involve afranging and holding cash from levies ang charges paid by
residents to the residential management companies The cash held at any point in ime 15 held under
Statutery Trust as set out in the Landlord & Tenant Act 1987 Accordingly. the Group does not include these
cash balances in its balance sheet

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributable to the ssue of new ordinary
shares are shown N equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Reiated party transactions

The Group discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the Group Where
appropriate. transactions of a simlar nature are aggregated unless. in the opinion of the directors, separate
disclosure 1s ngcassary to understand the effect of the transactions on the Group financial statements

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty

In the apphcatan of the Group's accounting policies the directors are required to rmake judgemeats,
estmates and assumptions about the carrying amount of agsets and habilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources The estimales and associated assumplions are based on historical expernence and
other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.
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2 Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including exgectations of future events that are believed to be reasonabte under the circumstances
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised n the pericd in which the estimate is revised where the
revision affects only that perniod, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects
both current and future periods

{a)  Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

{i} Classification of leasehold apartments as investment properties

The Group's interests in leasehold apartments within residentral development sites are classdied as
investment properties and included within non-current assets [n applying this classification the Group has
considered several factars including the apartments are typically used by house managers, the apartments
are not used by the Group for any other administrative purposes the Group does not typicaily earn rental
income from the apartments, but does benefit from capital appreciation in the open market value of the
apartmenis, the apartments are periodically made available for sale by the Group and hence gains in value
are crystalbsed, the fair value of the apartments can ba readily attained in a manner that is not considered ta
require undue cost or effart on the part of the Group

(b) Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition. seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and habilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

{i) Fair valug of acquisition of Kmight Square Holdings Limited, Manstay Group and Chamonix Group
The farr value of tangible and intangible assets acquired on the acquistion of Knight Square Holdings
Limted Group. Mainstay Group and Chamorx Group involved the use of valuation techrigues and the
estimation of future cash flows to be generated over a number of years The estimation of the fair values
requires the combinatien of assumptions mcluding revenue growth, sales mix and volumes. rental values
and increases and customer attrition rates in addition the use of discount rates requires judgement

{1 Impairment of intangible assets andt goodwill

The Group considers annuaily whather an indicator of goodwill iImpairment exists Where an indication of
impairment exists management are required to estimate the recoverable value of the cash-generating units
(CGUs) This requires estimation of the future cash flows from the CGUs and also selection of appropnate
discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those cash flows.

(i) Davelopment related provisions

The Group manages a large number of commercial and residential property developments, which give nise to
some disputes and claims by custorners under the management contracts that govern them. These claims
can take many years to emerge. so management considers 1t appropriate to recognise a provision. These
provisions require management's best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on legistatve and
contractual requirerments in addition. the timing of the cash flows and the discount rates used to estabiish
net presant vaiue of the obligations require management's judgement

(iv)  Deferred tax assets
The recognition of deferred tax assets. particulariy relating to previously incurred losses, requires judgement,
including in relation to the future taxable profits of the entities that incurred the losses. the types of losses
and future incame. the ufikisation of capital allowances in any year, and the extent of group relief transfers to
be made across the Group
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Acquisitions in the year

Acquisition of Mainstay Group

On 15 Seplember 2020. the Group acquired 100% share of Mainstay Group Limited for a total consideration of
£34 385k The foliowing table summarises ihe consideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assels
acquited and habilities assumed at the acguisition date.

Consideration at 15 September 2020:

Cash
MNon-cash consideration
Directly attributable cost

For cash flow disclosure purposes he amounts are disclosed as follows

Cash consideration
Directly attributable cost

Less

Cash and gash equivaients acquired

Net cash flow

Fixed assets
Customer relationships
Brands

Tangbie assels

Current assets

Trade and other recewvables
Cash and cash egquwalents
Related party recevable

Total assets

Trade and other payables
Corporation tax payable
Deferred tax habilty

Net Assets
Goodwill

Total purchase consideration

Notes Book Valug
£'000

16 B
6 .
7 537

2877
5414
3.630

£000
30.058

3.630
687

34.385

30,058
697

30 755

{5.414)

25 341

Ee— a1
Adjustments Fair Value
£'000 £'000

11,602 11,602
3151 3.161
- 537

- 2877
- 5414
2830

12.458

{7.049)
(99)
(85)

14763 27221

- {7.049)
(99)

{2.805) (2.890)

5.225
16

11,958 17.183
17.202
34.385

e————
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34

Acquisition of Mainstay Group (continued)

Contribution by the acquired business for the reporting period since acquisihon’

2020

£000
Turnover 7.092
Profit 874

Upon acquisition. the business had net assets with a fair value of £17 183k, Included n the far value
adustments are the recognition of intangible assets relaling to the acgquired business's customer
relationships and brand wentified and i1s far value was measured at £11.602k and £3.181k respectively A
deferred tax tability of £2 805k has been recogrused on the intangible assets which has been added to
goodwilt

The gooowill of £17 202k from the acquisition is atiributable to the expertise and experience of the workforce
acquired. the customer relabonships and economes of scale expected from combining the operations into
the Group Management has estimaled the useful hfe of the goodwill to be 20 years.

The customes relationships infangible assets has been attributed a useful bfe of between 2 and 1Q years and
prands intangible asset has been attsibuted a vseful life of 10 years The useful life 1s based en the period of
when the majonty of the value is generated
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3 Acquisitions in the year

3.2 Acquisition of Chamonix Group

On 2 December 2020 the Group acquired 100% share of Chramonix Holdings Limited for a total consideration
of £16,355k The following table summarises the consideration paid by the Group. the fair value of assets
acquired and labilities assumed at the acquisition date

Consideration at 2 December 2020: £'000
Cash 7,690
Barrowings settied 7922
Non-cash consigeration 477
Directly attributable cost 266
16.355
For cash flow disclosure purpases the amaunts are disclosed as follows
Cash consideration 7.680
Borrowings settled 7.922
Drectly attributable cost 266
15.878
Less.
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (4.254)
Net cash flow 11,624
Motes Book Value  Adjustments  Fair Value
E'000 £000 £'000
Fixed assets
Customer relationships 16 - 7258 7.258
Brands 16 - 501 501
Tangible assets 17 62 - 62
Current assets
Trade and othar recewables 897 - 897
Cash and cash equivalents 4 254 - 4 254
TYotal assets 5213 7759 12972
Trade and othes payables (1.271) - {127
Corporation tax payabie (294) - (294)
Deferred tax liabihity (57) (1.474) (1.531)
Net Assets 3591 6285 9.876
Goodwiil 16 6.479
Total purchase consideration 16,355
—
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3.2 Acquisition of Chamonix Group {continued)
Contribution by the acquired business for the reporting pericd smce acquisition
2020
£000
Turnover 473
Profit 178
e
Upon acquisiton, the business had net assets with a fair value of £9.876k Included in the far value
adjustments are the recognition of intangible assets refatng to the acguired business's customer
relationships and trand identified and its fair vaiue was measured at £7.258% and £501k respectively A
defesred tax fiability of £1 474k has been recognised on the intangible assets which has heen added to
goodwill
The goodwil of £6 475k from the acquisition is attributable 10 the experlise and expenence of the workforce
acquired, the customer relationships and economies of scale expecied from combining the operations into
the Group Management has estimated the useful life of the goadwill to be 20 years
The customer relationships inlangible asset has been attibuted a useful life of 10 years and brands
ntangible asset has been atinbuted a useful life of 5 years The useful life 15 based on the penod of when
the maganty of the vaiue is generated
4 Tuenover
An analysis of the group's turnover is as follows
7 month
A{
ear ended period ended
31 Oecember 31 December
2020 2018
£'000 £'000
Turntover by category
Residential properly management services 55,375 18.443
Commercial property and asset management 8.415 -
Other revenue 2,986 958
56.786 19.401
Other revenue refates to insusance comnussions and cansultancy revenue
All turnover s generated m the UK
5 Cost of sales

Cost of sales anse due to the acquisition of Mamstay's commercial property mangement business andg
residental faciiies management business Cost of sales recagnised in retation to the residential facilitities
management busingss 18 where the Group considers itself to be principal rather than agent i praviding on-
site staff

As cost of sales anly takes the above casts into consideration. gross prafit shawn should not be used when
trying to determine the profitabiiity of the Group
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Year ended 7 month
Exceptional items period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Transactional costs 907 1,841

Restrycture cosis 1,546

Other excephonal itams 331 182
2,784 2,123

Transactional costs mainly refate to one-off costs incurred an the acquisition of Mainstay and Chamonix
such as professional fees and integration costs

Restructure costs incurred as a result of reslructurng the Group due to COVID-19 and the Mainslay
acquisifron

Other exceptional items largely relate to one-off costs assoaiated with dealing with the COVID-19 pandemic
and relale to personal protective equipment Included in other exceplional items ara cosls in relation o
exting the London Bridge office and legacy costs assocated with the acquisibon of Knight Square Holdings
Limited Group in 2019

In 2019 erceptional charges related to the acquisition of Knight Squara Holdings Linuted Group

Other Operating income

An analysis of the other operating income is as follows
7 month
period ended
31 December 31 December

Year ended

2020 2019
£'000 £'000
R&D expenditure credit 388 -
Government grant 268 -
672 B

R&D expenditure credit refates to an R&D tax claim made on the Group's development of its digitat project

Government grant relates to the UK Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme (CJRS). The Group
furloughed employees in line with the CJRS and recognised £286k in the year as incomeg There are no
contingencigs atlached to the CIRS
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8 Operating loss

QOperating loss for the year / period is stated after charging’

Depreciation of owned tangtbie assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of tangible assets
Operating lease charges

9 Adjusted EBITDA

Operating loss reconciles to adjusted EBITDA as fallows’

Operating loss

Depreciation of gowned tangible assets
Amartisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of tangible assels
Exceplional items

Share-based payments

Adjusted EBITDA

10 Auditors’ remuneration

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and thewr associates

Fees payable ta the Company's auditors for the audit of the
Parent Company and the Group's Consohdated financial
statements

Fees payable o the Company's auditors for other services
- The audit of the Company's subsidiaries

- Audit refated assurance services

- Tax comphance services

- Tax advisary senvices

- Other services

Total amount payable to the Company's auditors and its assgoiates

7 month

Year ended period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

£'000 £'000

1.848 655
10421 2920

85 -

3,451 1.0986

7 manth

Year ended period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019

£'000 £000
{1.693) (2.238;
1,849 655
10.421 2.920

5% -

2784 2123

68 -

13.484 3.450
7 month
Year ended period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
£'008 E'000

422 46

12 241

31 &

22 95

129 115

[ 7

5§22 510
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12

Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group and company during
the year was

2020 2019
Number Number
Office and managemen! 1.538 790
House managers and deputies 2.280 2 309
3.799 3.099
Their aggregate remuneration comprised
Year ended 7 manth

period ended
31 December 31 December

2020 2019

£°000 £000
Wages and salaries 33.534 12 450
Social secunty costs 3.350 2503
Other pension costs (note 27) 1.285 346
Share-based payments 68 -
Total aggregate remunerahon before capitabised cosls 38 237 15 299
Less capitahised costs (790) (159
Ahggregale remuneration charged 1o profit and loss 37 447 15,140

House managers are employed by lhe Group to oversee ndwidual developments managed by the Group
The employment cost of hause managers i1s not included in the above table as these costs are recharged at
cost to the developments managed by the Group and therefore are not a cost to the Group on account of the
Group being an agent for this transaction These amounted lo wages and salary costs of £38.912k (2019.
£12.088k) social securily costs of £2.902k (2019 £886K) and other pension costs of £1.232k (2019 £355k).

During the year ended 31 December 2020 the Group capitalised wages and salaries of £EG84k (20189.
£134k). soc:al securty cost of £75k (2019 16k) and other penston cost of £31k (2019 9k} Capitalised
wages forms part of the cost of internally developed software.

Directors’' remuneration
7 month
pariod anded
31 December 31 December

Year ended

2020 2019

£'000 £000

Aggregate remunerations 1.020 266
1.020 266

The number of directors for whom setirement benefits are accrung under defined beneft schemes amounted
to one (2019 none)

4 directors were padd by the Group dunng lhe year The remaining directors ¢id not recewve fees The
emolumants disclosed above are from the date which the individual became a directar of the Company
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13

Directors' remuneration {continued)

Remuneration disclosed above includes the following amounts paid fo the highest paid director

Aggregate emofuments

Company

The Company has no employees (2019 nonej

Interest payable and similar expenses

tnterest an financial liabilties measured at amartised cast

Interest on bank loans and overdrafis

{Meres{ on finance leasas and hwe purchase confracts
Interest on sharehelder loans

Loan fee amortisalion

7 month
period ended
31 December 131 December

Year ended

2020 2019

£000 £'000

565 1468

565 148

7 month

Year ended period ended
31 December 31 December
2020 2049
£'000 £'000

£ 557 1642

- 3

5604 1.622

588 161

11.749 3,429

Debt 1ssue costs, ncluding loan amortisation fees which are dirsclly incurred in arrangement of borrowing
facilmes are included within the calculaton of the effechve interes! rate on the borrowsng. but are disclosed
separately as the Group consider this infarmation aids ' the understanding of the tolal financing costs
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Share-hased payments

During the current year and prior period, certain employees of the Group subscribed for a total of 23208 B
Ordinary Shares in the Company The B Qrdinary Shares were issued in order ta incentivise the halders to
arow the vaiue of the Graup

in the gvent that 2 hotder of B Ordinary Shares leaves the empioyment of the Group. the Company has the
right but not the obligation to require the holder to transfer therr B Ordinary Shares to an employee of the
Group or an employee trust established for the benefit of employaes of the Group.

The price that 2 holder of B Ordinary Shares receives for such a transfer depends upaon inter alia, the date an
which the hglder leaves and the manner m which they leave The price vanes between the fair price’ of the
shares (this being 2 price determined by the transferor and remuneration commitiee or, 10 the absence of
agreement. an independent expert) and the price the holder paid for the share.

In all other respects the B Ordinary Shares rank pari passu with the A Qrdinary Shares of the Company (the
only ather class of shares 1 1ssue) as regards vating rights. rights to dividends and nghts on a return of
capital

The 1ssue of the B Orcnary Shares has been accounted for as an equily settled share-based payment
arrangement iIn accordance with the accounting policy descnbed innote 1 13

The fair value of the shares issued under this arrangement has been measured by reference to the expected
futwe value of the Group at an assumed exit date. this being the date of sale. asset sale. hsting or winding-
up The main steps 1n the valuation approach were as follows

+ Slep 1 - estimating the enterpnise vatue of the Group at the date the B Ordinary Shares were issued.

« Step 2 - simulating the future enterprise value of the Group using a Mote-Carlo valuation model through ta
the assumed exit date

* Step 3 - denving the value attnbutable to the holders of the A Ordinary Shares and B Ordinary Shares of the
Company by deducting net debt at the assumed ext daie.

* Step 4 - ailocating the proportion of the equity value to the B QOrdinary Shares.

* Step 5 - discounting the equity value back ta the date the 8 Qrdinary Shares were issued using the risk-free
rate and expected tme to the assumed exit date.

For the period ended 31 December 2019, ne accounting charge was recognised in refation to the above
described share-based payment aimangement as the amount was considered immatenal Dunng the year
ended 31 Decernber 2020, the Group has recognised a total expense of £68k in prohit or loss  This comprises
a catch up charge of E12k in refation to the prior period and a charge of £56k for the current year
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Tax on lass

7 month
period ended
3% December 31 December

Year ended

2020 2019
£000 £'000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on taxabie loss for the current year - g
Adjustments in respect of prior periods {459} -
Tolal current lax {credit) / charge {459} 9
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of trming differences {605; 118
Adjustments in respect of priar periads 545 -
Effect of tax rate change on opering balance 1.156 53)
Total deferred tax 1.095 83
Total tax charge for the year 636 72

The charge for the year can be reconcled to the loss before taxation per the profit and loss account as
follows.

7 month

period ended

31 December 31 Qecember

Year ended

2020 2019

£'000 £000
Loss before taxation (13,442} (5667}
Expecied tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 18% (2019, 18%]) {2.554) (1.077)
Non-deductible expenses 2.190 1.202
Effect of changes in tax rates and laws 1.156 (83j
income not taxable for 1ax purposes 2) -
R&D expenditure credis ) -
Adjustments n respect of prior pericds {459) -
Adjustments in respect of prioc periods (deferred lax} 545 -
Transfers (167)
Total tax charge for the year 636 72

In the Spring Budget 2821, the Government annaunced thal from 1 April 2023 the corporation tax rate vl
ncrease o 25% Since the praposal to increase the rate to 25% had nat been substantively enacted at the
bafance sheet date. s effects are nof inciuded in these financial statements However. it i likely that the
overall effect of the change, had W been substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, would be 1o
increase the lax expense for the year by £3,598k and to increase the deferred tax lability by £3.598k

Deferred tax balances al 31 Jecember 2020 were measurad at 19% (2019 19%) for jtems that are
expected o be charged or credited to the profit and foss account in the next financial year
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intangible assets

Group

Cost Note
Balance at 1 January 2020

Additions

Additions from acqusition of Mainstay 34

Addilions from acquisition of Chamoni 3.2

Balance at 31 Decemper 2020

Accumutated amortisatior and impairment
Balance at 1 January 2020
Amoriisation charge for the year

Balance at 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

Goodwill Software  Customer Brands Total
List
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
51.998 5588 56,832 7.722 121,920
R 8 556 - - 8 556
17.202 - 11.602 3161 31965
6.479 - 7.258 501 14,238
75679 14124 75 492 11384 176.679
823 59 1.793 245 2.920
2.878 497 9.173 873 10,421
3.701 556 7.986 1.118 13,341
71978 13.568 67 526 10,266 163,338
81,175 5 509 54,839 7477 119.000

Included in tatal cost of soflware £12.787k has been ciassifiect as assetfs under construction as at 31 December 2020

(2019 £4.246k)

The Company had no intangible assels at 31 December 2020 or 31 December 2019
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Tangible assets

Group

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2020

Additions from acquisition of Mainstay
Additions from acgquisition of Chamonix
Additions

Disposals

Balance af 31 December 2020
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Baiance at 1 January 2020

Depraciation charged in the year
Dispaosals

Balance at 31 December 2020

Carrying amount
Balance at 31 December 2020

Bafance at 31 Oecember 2319

The Company had no tangible assets at 31 December

Office equipment,
fixtures & fittings
Note £'000

3766

3.1 537
3.2 62
875

210)

5130

655
1.849
{159)

2349

2781

3111

2020 or 31 December 2019
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18 investraent in subgidiaries

Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'G00 E'Q00 £'000 E£'00D
Total investment in subsidiaries - - 162 94
Movements in investments
Company £'000
Cost
Balance at 1 January 2020 94
Capital contnbutions magde o subisidiaries 68
Balance at 31 December 2020 162
Carrying amount
Balance at 31 December 2020 162
Batance at 31 December 2019 g4

Investment 1n subsidianes held by the Company can be found 1 note 35

Capital contributions made to subsidaries in the year arise as a result of share-based payments chargas to
emplayees in the subsidiary entities The obligation to settle the transactian with the emplayees of subsidiary
undertakings 1s recognised as a tapilal contnbuton made to those subsidianes by ncreasng the cost of
investment in subsidiary undertakings as the subsidianes recognises the charge for share based payment
awards in profit ar loss See note 1 13 for further details

The directors believe that the carrying vatue of the investmants is not more than their recoverable amount as
supporied by their undeslying assets
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19 Financial instruments

2020 2019
Note £'000 £'000
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade debtors 20 2643 1,490
Qther debtors 20 295 722
Cash at bank and in hand 7.585 4,558
Accrued income 828 678
12,051 7.448
Financial iiabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade creditors 22 3.161 2.187
Other creditors 22 3,307 2121
Accruals 3.380 7.078
Bank loans 24 97.700 64.200
Sharehoider toans - principal 24 61,431 51,036
Interest on shareholder loans 24 7.221 1.622
Deferred financing costs 24 (4,248 (2,943)
172 554 125.281
26 Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2020 2019 2020 2019
£00 £000 £000 £'900
Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade debtors 2.843 1,490 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 318 -
Corporation tax recoverable 1476 593 - -
Other debtors 285 722 - -
Prepayments and accrued mcame 3757 2.508 - -
887 5313 318 -

Trade deblors are stated after provisions for impairment of £413k (2019, £91k)

Amounts owad by Group undertakings are unsecured. Interest free. have no fixed date of repayment and are

repayable on demand
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22

23

Client monies

Residents’ net cash balances held in trust accounts at 31 December 2020 were £338.182k (2019 £250,318k)
Cash balances held in joint accounts at 31 December 2020 were £4 604k (2019. £6.307k)

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Graup Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Trade creditors 3.161 2167 -
Amounts owed lo group undertakings - - 268

Qther creditors 3.307 2121 - -
Corporation tax payable 445 . .
Qther taxation and social security 8.153 2.380 -
Accruals and deferred incomea 9522 7.078 1
24,588 13,746 269

Amaunts owed to group undedakings are unsecured interes! {ree. have no fixed date of sepayment and are
repayable on demand

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Grovp Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note £¢00 £'000 £'000 £'000

Bank loans and overdrafts (net of financing costs) 24 93 454 61.257 - -
Sharenolder loans 24 61.431 51.036 -

Interest an shareholder laans 24 7221 1822 - -

162,108 113.915 - -
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Borrowings

Bank loans

Shareholder loans - principal
Interest on shareholder Ioans
Deferred financing cests

Payable afler one year

Bank ioans

The Group has a £105.2m bank faciity comprising of the following

Bank faciiily term schedule

Group

Term loan facility B3
Term loan facility B2

Term loan acquisition/capex facifity

Revolving faciity
Additionat Super Seror Facilty
Additianal Unitranche Factity

Second Additional Unitranche Facility

Group Group Company Company

2020 2019 2020 2018

£'000 £'000 £:000 £'G0¢

97,700 64,200 - -

81431 51.036 - -

7.221 1622 - -

{4,246} (2,943) - -

162,106 113,815 - -
162,106 113,915 - -
Nemina! Termination Repayment Credit
interest rate date pay Facility
£'000

LIBOR + 2.25% 09-0ct-25 At termination date 12,100
LIBOR + 5% 09-Apr-26 At termination dale 52.100
LIBOR + 6% 09-Apr-26 At termination date 10,000
LIBOR + 2 25% 09-Oct-25 At termination date 7.500
LIBDR + 3% 09-0Oct-25 Al terminahion date 4 000
LIBOR + 7 75% 03-Apr-26 At termination date 7.000
LIBOR + 6 75% 09-Apr-26 At termination date 12,500
105,200

The revolying tacility remains undrawn as at 31 December 2020

interest on the faclity 1s cash seftled on a six monthly basis A commitment fee is charged on the undrawn

amount on a three monthly basis.

The facility is held by FirstPort Limited and s secured against the shares and assets of Knight Square

Limnted and s subsidisnes

The financial covenants attached to the £105 2m bank facility were tasted as at year end Compliance with
covenants in respect of the external bank debt has been assessed to June 2022 with no breaches faorecast

The nominal interest rate m the tahle ahove is conditional and depends an the financial performance of the
Group The current rate disclosed 1s based on the current financiaf performance
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24 Barrawings (continued)
Sharehalder icans

The Graup has one class of shareholder laar note instrument in 1ssue at the balance sheet date During the year the Group
1ssued a fuither £10,453 413 of shareholder loan noles to finance the acquisihon of Mamnstay The loan roles are hsted on
The Internationai Stock Exchange As al the 31 December 2020 the Drive Topco Employee Benefit Trust nolds £64k of
shareholder laan notes 2019 £ni) which 15 consohdated in the Group and Comepany financiat statements See note 17 for
further detals

The gnnapal oulstacding on the shareholder loan notas o the Goaup as at 31 December 2020 was £61 431k (2019
£51.036k) and have beean provided by the follovang parties

2020 2019

L. Acctued  Enterest {ntarest - Accrued  Intecest
Pringipal ) Principal X

interest paid expense interest  expense
£'000 £000 £:000 £'oo0 £000 £000 £000
Eguisione Parners Lurope Limied 59307 5978 - 5 408 49 461 1,572 1572
Management 2124 243 (5) 198 1575 50 50
651431 7.221 (5} 5 604 51036 1622 1622

Interest 15 payabie on the outstanding baiance at a rate of 10°% of the prmeipal accrued on a daily basis  Interest on the
Sharehalder Loan Notes can be settled annually on 6 September by. at the Group s ophon ether the issue of Payment in
Kind (PiK) Notes which rank ahead of the onginal notes or by defarral in which case compound interest will apply to the

amound defarred

Repayment of the Sharehoider Loan Notes 1s due on the eariier ol 6 September 2029 or on exit

Deferred financing costs
Beferred financing costs are amorhised over the penod of the revolving credit fadibty which makes up the effective interast
rate

25 Provisions for labilities
Group Company Group Company

2020 2020 Tois 2013

Note E'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Devetopment rglated provsions 542 - 538
Deferred tax iabinties 26 15 131 - 5515
15 673 - 10,153
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26

Pravisions for fabilities (continued)

Movernents on developmant related provisions

Development

related

provisions

Group Note £'000
Balance at 1 January 2020 538
On acquisition 31 205
Additional provisions i the year 691
Release of provisions in the year {171)
Utiksation of provisian {(721)

Balance at 31 December 2020 842

The Group manages a large number of commercial and residential properly developments, which give rse to
same disputes and claims by custamers under the management contracts that govern them  These claims
can take many y@ars to emerge. so management considers it appropriate to recagaise a grovision These
provisions regquire management's best estimate of the costs that will be incurred based on tegisiative and
contraciual requirements. in addition, the timing of the cash flows and the discound rates used to establish
net present value of the ohligations require management's judgement

Whilst significant progress has been made in addressing these claims and management continue to assess
them on their ments, a provision of £542k (2018 £538k) has been recognised at the year end. This is
expected to be utilised over a period of up to five years, with an estimated E461k (2019 £308k) expected to
be seitied within the next financial year

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assels and liabilities are offset where the Group of company has a legally enforceable nght to
do so The following 1s the anaiysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporling purposes

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

2020 2020 2019 2019

Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Fixed asset timing differences - (16 602} - (9,684}
Short-term tming differences 73 - - (20)
Non-trading tming differences - - 60 -
Lesses 1.434 - 61 -
tnvestmeant property - (361 - (32)
1,507 (16,638) 121 (9.736)
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27

Daferred taxation {continved)

Group Camgany

Note £000 £000
Movements in the year:
Liabihty at 1 January 2020 (9.615} -
On acquisticn of Mainstay 31 (2.890} -
0On acquisition of Chamonix 3.2 (1.531
Charge to profil and loss account {1.095) -
Liability at 31 December 2020 (15.131) -

The net deferred tax tiability expecied to reverse in 2021 15 £1.782k {20198 £1 146k} This pnmarity reiates to
the reversal ol iming differences on capital allowances.

The Group does not have any unrecognised deferred 1ax asset for losses camed forward

Caompany

The Company has no deferred tax provision at 31 December 2020 (2019 o)

Retirement benefit schemes

2020
£000
Defingd contribution schemes
Charge to profit and lass account 1.285

2019
£000

346

The Group spansars and contributes to a defined contribution scheme for s employees Pension contnibutions outstanding

and inciuded n accryals at the year end amaunted to £511k (2019 £356k)
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Called up share capital and other reserves

Group and company Group and company
Called up Share  Treasury Catled up Share  Treasury
share premium shares share  premium Shares
capital account reserve capital account  Reserve
2020 2020 2020 2018 2015 2019
£:900 £'900 £000 £000 £000 £000
Ordinary share capital
Issued and fubly paid
98.460 {2019 8C 000} A Ordmary shares af £0 01 1 15 - 1 78
24615 (2019 14.000) B8 Ordinary shares of £0 01 . 29 3 . 14
Acqusihon of shares by EBT . . {4} . . N
Sefflement of shares by EBT members . - & - - R
1 144 (1) i g3

A and B Ordinary shares cafry one vole per share All classes of shares have a nerminat vaiue of £0 01 have the nght 10 recewe
dividends, and a night 1o return of capial

On 16 January 2020, the Company ssued 1,500 B’ Qrdinary shares at £1 per shara to management

On 15 Apni 2020 the Company 1ssued 2 500 '8 Ordinary shares a1 £1 per share 10 management

QOn 15 September 2020, the Company issued 18 460 'A° Qrdinary shares and 4 615 ' B Oidinary shares at £1 95 per share o hnance
the Mamstay acquistion

Qn 6 Apni 2020. the Cormpany 1gsued 1 400 ‘B’ Ordinary shares at £1 per share {0 the EBY These were aliocated 1o ang settied by

ermployeas at £1 par share
fn 2020, the EBT acquwred 1 750 '8 Granary shares af £1 per share and 1 400 B’ Ordinary shares at £1 95 per share from

management
On 21 December 2020, the Company issued 800 ‘B’ Ordinary shares al £1 95 per share to the EBT Following thus, 2 343 '8

QOrdinary shares were issued to and setiled by emplovees a1 £1 85 per gshare
The amaount within the Treasury shares resarve represents shares held by the EBT tha!l have not yet been 1ssued lo employess

The Company recogrises a credit refahng to equity-setlied share-based payments into share-based payment reserve This 12 not a
realised profit and thus 1s a non-chsinbutable reserve For the year ended 31 Oecember 2020 this amounted {0 £68k which includes

€12k from the 2019 penod Ses aote 14 for further details

Operating lease commitments
Af the reporting end date the Group and campany had oulstanding commidments far fufure mummum jesse payments under non.
cancalable operatng ieadses which fall due as foifows

Group Company Group Campany
202¢ 2020 018 2019
E£'000 £000 £000 £000
VWitin one year 1820 - 1.400
Between two and five years 1492 - 1027
In pver five years 388 - g
3648 - 2433 -
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32

Contingent liabilities

Tha Group is party to a Group Debenlure secured over all of its assets in favour of Lucid Trustee Services Limited as a
Security Agent acting on benaif of NatWest and Pemberton The Borower s FiestPort Limited, a subsidiary company. The
loan batance, exchuding deferred financing cost. and accrued inferest payatle outstanding at the balance sheet date were
£G7 700k gnd £1,205k respectively

A number o} bank accounts mamntained for developments under management {and included in Client Monies described m
nole 19) were overdrawn at 31 December 2020 amounting lo £772 (2019. £2,072). The Group have given unlimited
guarantees an these amounts i the event of default

Events after the balance sheet date
There have been no events after the balance sheel date that have taken place that has matenally alfected the Group

Related parties

Group

Equistone Parners Europe Limited and the funds managed by Equistone Partners Eurape Limited. registered in England
and Wales. are regarded as relaled parfies due o therr sharehatding in the Company. their proviston of shareholder loans to
the Group. and their representation on the board of Oirectors, which gives them significant influence over the Company and
Group

The key management personnet of the Group are considered 1o be the Drectors of the Company and cerlain senior
management employees of the Group A number of the key management personnel have atso provided funding to the
Group via shareholder loans and are shareholders of the Company

Transactions with related parties

The funds managed by Equistone Partpers Europe Limited and key management personnel are holders of Shareholder
Loan Nates. which are included i Barrowings and wcar interes! expanse Details of these teansactiens and balances are
shown v note 22

Remuneration of key management personnel

The semuneration of key management personnel, which includes those diractors remunerated by the Group. s as tollows

Year ended Year ended

2020 2019
£'000 £000
Aggregale emoluments 1072 590
Qther pension costs 7 !
1078 591
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33

34

35

Related parties {cantinued)

Company

The Company's only relaled panty transactions in the year were with wnally owned subsidiangs and so have nol been tisclosed All
balangas in (he currenl pendd woro with whnlly gwned subsidianas

Controiling party

in the opmion of fhe direclors. the uiimate coniroling party is funtds managed by Equisione Parners Europe Limitedt Equistone
Parinets Europe Limited 1s registered in England and Wales

Drve Topco Limited 1s the parent undertaking of the largest and smakest group of undertakings for which group hinancial statements
ate prapares

The consohdated financial slatements of Drve Topoo Lumited are available from Comparnies Mouse Crown Way Mandy, Cardifs
CF4 JUZ or brom the Company's registered oifice at Queensway House 11 Queensway. New Miton Hampshrs, UK, BM25 5NR

Result of the company for the financial year

As permited by sacton 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the Company's profit and loss account has not been included i these
financial statements  The Company made a profit of £4% 1n the financial year (2019 En)

Subsidiaties
Detais of the company’s subsidianes at 31 December 2020 are as follows

Name of undertaking and country of incorporation or Nature of Registered % Held
residency business Postcode

Direct Indirect
Amenity Property (Avon Meadows England & Wales
Bidferd) Lirmited No 08641151 Dormant WRS 2Z% 100 0G
Amenily Property (Brianma Mews England 8 Wales
Telford; Limited No 093618%¢ Doanant WRS 22X 100 60
Ameniy Property (Cally Blus Fields  England & Wales
Stockton) Limited No 10461397 Dormant WRS 22X 100 00
Ameraty Property (Enlech House £nglang 8 Wales
Wounlmer Green} Limited No 12063881 Dormaint WRS 22X 186G 08
Amenity Property {Himley View England & Wales
Oudley) Limited No GB368398 Dormant WRS 27X 100 00
Amenity Property {Hugasieah Place  Englang & Wales
Highley) Limited No 08752988 Darrmant WRES 22X 100 00
Amenity Property {Levett Grange England & Wales
Rugeley) Limiied No 07638525 Dormant WRS 2ZX 10040
Amenity Propenty {Lochside Walk England & Wales
Brietley HIY Limted NG 09043198 Darman WRS 22X 100.00
Amenty Fropery (Mellent Gardens Englang & Wales
Badworthy Limited No 12695871 Cormant WRE 22X 10000
Amenity Property (Miliprook Park Englang & Wales
Landan Phase 4A} Lvmited Na 10385756 Dormant WRS 22X 10G g0
Amenity Property (Millbiook Park England & Waies
London Phase 4C) Limited Mo 11524467 Dormant WRS 22X 100 80
Amenity Property (AMiflers Reach England & Wales
Stone) Limned No 09245118 Dormant WRS 22X 100 0a
Amenity Property {Qaklgigh Grove England & Wailes
Whetstone) Limited No 10704287 Dormant WRS 22X 100 00
Amentty Property [Pennywel Walk England & Wales
Upton Upan Savern) Limited No 13030843 Barmant WRS 27X 133 0%
Amenty Property (Postmark Londan}  England & Wales
tirwted No 12002086 Darmant WRS 22X 100 00
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Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of undertaking and country of incorporation or

residency

Amenity Property (Preedy Place
Badsey) Limited

England 8 Wales No
05155288

Amenity Property (Priory Gardens England & Wales Na

Market Drayton} Liruted
Amenity Property {Saddters
Brook Walsall) Limiled
Amenity Property (Scarlett Oaks
Shifnal) Limied

Armenty Property (Sherdord
Plymouth Parcet B) Limited
Armanity Property (Sherford
Plymouth Parcef F) Limited
Amenity Prapary {Sharford
Plymauth Parcel G) Limited
Amenity Property (Sherford
Plymouth Parcel J) Limited
Amendy Property (Sherord
Blymauth Parcel L) Limaad
Amenity Property {Sherford
Piymoutn Parcel M) Lirmited
Amenty Property {Sherford
Plymeuth Parce! S} Limaed
Amendy Propeny (The
Hathaways Stratford) Limted
Amenity Propedy {Thomas
Beaddoes Court SHifnan Limited
Amenty Property {(Walmley Croft
Sutton Coldfietd) Uimitad
Amentty Propeny {Woodland
View Coventry) Limited
Amenty Property Holdings
Lumnited

Baker Sinclar Limited

Baitour Homes Management
Limted

Brook Farm Count Management
Lrmilag

Cavendrsh Management
(Narwich) Luenited

CE Anthony tiolan (Fawstead;
Lrmied

CE Blenheim Grange Waltton
Limrted

GE Churchdl Gardens
Cambowne Limited

CE Cebbler's Mews Romany
Road Limited

CE Lack Ml Blackbum Limuted

CE Dakfeid Gardens Hyde
Limited

07439333
Englang & Wales No
7639422
England & Vales No
10900318
Engiand & Wales No
10833831
England & YWaies No
108393976
England & Wales No
10535172
England & Wales No
11454306
England & Wales No
11454877
£ngland & Waies No
11923138
England & Wales No
10535353
England & Wales No
09361834
Engiand & Wales No
07639358
England & Wales No
10547213
England & VWales No
07638359
England & Wales No
Q7635509
Engtand & Wales No
10306297
England & Wales No
01986825
England & Wales No
D236B738
England & Wales No
01831847
England & Wales Mo
08354198
Engiand & Wales No
06067570
England & Wates No
06453105
Engtand & Wales No
06022591
England & Wales No
ng348923
Engtand & Waies No
06406564

Nature of business

Dormant

Qarmany

Daormant

Oormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dorpant

Oarmant

Canant

Dornrant

Darmant

Doornant

Ocrmant

Oomant

Dormant

Oarmant

Cormant

Non-trading

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Oormant

Oormant

Oormanmt

Dormant

Dormant

Registered % Held
Paostcode
Qirect Indirect

WRS 22X 100 00
VVRE 27X 10204
VWRE 22X 100 02
WRS 22X 100 OO
WRS 22X 100 00
WRS 22x 100 00
WRS 22X 100 00
WRS 24X% 100 00
WYWRS 22X 10000
WRS 27X Q0 o0
WR5 2ZX 1G0 00
WREH 22X 100 00
WRS 22X 100 00
WRS 22X 100 00
WRS 2ZX 100 00
WRS 225, 106 0o
SG90RU 100 00
BH25 5NR 106 00
BH25 5NR 100 00
BH25 5NR 100 0G
5G9 ORY 100 0D
SG9ORU 100 00
S5G2 aRY 1060 00
SGO ORU 100 0c
SGeary 130 a0
5G9 aRrU 100 00
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Subsidiaries {continued)

Name of undertaking and country of ingarporation  Nature of business

or residency

CE Poppy Fields
{Banwck) Limited
CE The Hawthorns
Blackley Liamted

CE Willow Grange Ely
Limited

Chamonix Estatas
Oevelopments Limited

Charmnonix £stales Limifed

Chamonix Group Limited

Chamaonix Holdings
Limited

Conson Froperty
Management Limited

Drve Bideo Limited

Drwe Midco Lirmitad

Edgewood Management

Services Limited

Edgewood Rebrement
Oevelopmenis Limited

Fairfield Company
Secretares Limited

Ferndaie Retiremant
Management Limited

FirstPor Bespoke

Progerty Services pimiteg

FustPort HMF Limited

FirstPon [nsurance
Services Limnsd

FirstPort investment
Properties Limited

FiestPort Limuted

FirstPort Operations PD

Limited

FrstPort Property
Services Limisted

FirstPort Proparty
Serviges No 2 Lumited

FrstPort Property
Services Na 1 Limded

FirstPort Property
Services No 4 Limited

FirstPort Praperty
Services No 5 Limnted

FiestPornt Property

Services Scotland Limsted

FirstPort Retirement
Limited

Englang § Wales No
06353915
Lngland & Wates No
(6443043

England & Wales No
06067392
England & Wales No
10821470
England & Wales Na
05851267

England & Wales No
05858372

Englansg & Wales No
12500321
Englang & Wales No
(03479620
England & wales No
12043128
England & Wales No
120423082
England & Wales No
02948602
Engtand & Wales No
42086525
England & Wales No
(5988785
England & Wales Na
01709679
England & Wales No
01623498
England & Wales Na
06775352
England & Waies No
03479579
tEngland & Waies No
04352383
England & Wales No

T 04352396

England & Wales No
06277828
England & Wales No
02061441
England & Wates No
02231168
England & Vwales No
04352415
England & Wales No
07298764
Engtand & Wales No
45376680
Engiand & Wales No
(3829468
Engtand & Wales No
03479623

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Dormant

Propeny Management

Property Management

Properly Management
Dormam

Prowision of shared
SeryvIces

Holding company
Neon-trading
Non-trading

Property WManagement
Oarmant

Propery management
lnvestmen! property
[nsurance semvices
Dormant

Pravisian of shared
SernVICes

Inyegtment propedy
Properly managameant
Property managament
Dormant

Property management
Property management

Property management

Diorrant

Registered
Postcode
563 0RU

5G9 oRy

$G9 JRU

5G3 IRY

SGY ORU

5G9 GRU

5G9 0RU

BH2S 5NR
BH25 5SNR
BH25 SNR
BH2Z5 SNR
BH25 SR
SG9 oRU

BH25 S5NR
BH25 5MR
BH2S5 SNR
BH25 SNH
BHZ5 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 5NR
BH25 SNR
BH25 SNR

BH25 5NR

% Held

Direct

100 00

indirect

100 00

H1g 00

1040 00
109 00

100 00

100 00

100 a0

100 G0

100 40

100 00

100 ag

160 00

100 00

10000

184 00

100 00

190 00

100 00

10000

10G 09

100 09

100 99

100 00

100 80

10000

100 00
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35  Subsidiaries {continued)

Mame of undertaking and country of incarparation  Nature of business

or residency

FustPort Retrement
Propenty Services Limied

FirstPort Secretanal
Limited

FustPont Servces Limited

Ground Rent Services
Limnted

King George Court
Management Limned

Knight Mideo Limited

Kmight Sguare Holdings
Limied

Knight Square Limited

tanghurst Drive
Managamean! Company
Lamted

Maclaren Martagement
Services Limited

Mainstay {Secratanes)
Limited

Mainstay Facittes
Management Limited

Manstay Group Limited

Mainstay Payrnents
Limited

Mamstay Residennal
Limited

tatterdate Gardens
Management Limted

Maybeck Collectons
Limited

Mendian Homes Limied

Mendian New Homes
Lirmted

tendian Property Gitup
Limsited

Merdian Retirement
Homes Limiled

Meridian Retrement
Housing Senvices Limded

Mint Property
Management Limited

MRML Lyndted

OM Norminee Services
Lumuted

Q8 Property Managemant
Lirnted

England & Wales Na
41614866
England & Waies No
05806647
England & Wales No
059142972
Englang & Wales No
09804654
Engiznd & Wales No
03175135
England & Wates No
07927619
England & Wales No
07925023
England & Wales No
079250y

England & Waies No
11415290
Engiand & Wales No
02142118
England & Wates No
04458913
Englang & Wales No
03340310
Engiand & Wales No
04002715
Enpland & Wates No
04771082
England & Wares No
04052477
England & Wales No
02405973
England & Wales No
04052424
England & Yales No
0eT272?
Engiand & Wales No
02682974
England & Wales No
02308958
Engiand & Waies No
01885186
England & Vales No
QiB3NT7
£ngland & Walas No
058423630
Engiand & Waies No
03804173
England & Wales No
06655871
England & Walas No
08143096

Praperty management
Dormant

Dormast

Dormant

Non-trading

Holding company
Holkling company
Provision of shared
servces

Lormars

Darivant

Dormant

Propenty Management
Property Management
Darmant

Property Management
Nom-tradmng

Dormant

Cormant

Dormant

Non-tradng

Oormant

Dosmang

Non-trading

Darmant

Dormanl

Darmant

Registered % Held
Postcode
Direct indirect

BH25 SNR 100 00
BH25 SNR 100 02
8#25 5NR 100 00
3G9 DRU 100 00
8H25 5NR 100 60
Br25 SNR 100 00
BHZ5 5NR 100 00
BH25 9NR 100 00
8G9 0RY 120 g0
BH25 5NR 100 0o
WRS 22X 100 09
WRS 22X 100 00
WRS 22X 100 00
WRE 22 00 09
WRS 22X 100 Q0
BH25 5NR 100 00
WRS 22X 100 0¢
BH2S ENR 100 00
BH25 5NR 100 00
BH2S SNR 100 60
BH25 SNR 106 00
BHZ5 SMR 100 00
BH25 5NR 100 0g
WRS5 22X 180 Q8
BH25 5NR 1¢0 00
B8H25 SNR 10 g
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Subsidiaries (continued)

Name of undertaking and country af incorporation Nature of b

or residency

O Property Management England & Wales No

Ne 2 Limied
Pegasus Court
(Abergavenny)
Management Limited
Pegasus Count

{Barnwood) Management

tarmted

Pegasus Coun (Bourton-

on-the-\Waler}

Pegasus Court [Broagway]

Management Uimited
Pepasus Court (Fleet)
Management Lirnited

Pegasus Court {Paignton)

fManagement Limited
Pegasus Court
Cheltenham
(Management) Limuted

FPegasus Court Hartiey

wWintney (Managemant)

Limited

Pegasus Court
Management Limited
Pegasus Thamesnorth
Management Limited

Fembertons Mantenance
Trustees (Aldiord House)

Limuted

Pambertons Residental

Lirited

Peverei Bulding
Technotagies Limiled
Pevaral Management
Services Limited

Peverel Propery
Maragement Limited

Pevesel Scotland Limed

Peveret Services Lumited

R C (Holdings) Limited

R C Housing Limyted

Renaissance Management

Servces timied

Retrement Care
{Southern) Limited

Retirement Care Group

Ld

Retrement Gare Limied

09375984

Engiand & Wales No
02285749

England & Vvales No
02311508
England & Wajes No
02285752
Engfand & Wales No
02392044
England & Wales No
02318877
England & Wales No
02382342

England & Wales No
01857554

England & Wales No
02129138

England & Wales No
9251692¢
Engiang & Wales No
02636137

England & Wales No
05111218

England & Wales No
Q9375969

England & Vwales No
09221881
Engiand & Waies No
09142758
England & Wales No
9146178
England & Wales No
09145223
England & Wales No
09148279
Englandg & YWaies No
02968054
England & Yales No
11012025
England & Wales No
02404510
England & Wales No
02486317
England & Wales No
02195300
Engfand & Wales ho
(11706784

Reg J

Pastcode
Dormant BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 5NR
Doemant BH25 5NR
Dormant BH2S 5NR
Darmant BH25 5NR
Barmant BH25 SNR
Ocrmant 8H25 5NR
Dormant BHZ5 8NR
Dormant BH25 SNR
Dormznt BH25 BNR
Dormanm BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 SNR
Darmart BH25 5NR
Dormant BH25 SNR
Darmant BHZS SNR
Holding company BHZ2S 5NR
Propertly management BH25 5NR
Non-trading BH25 5NR
Nen-rading BH2% BNR
Investment propery BH25 SNR
Dormant BH25 5NR

Direct

% Held

Indirect

10C 00

10¢ 0%

10000

100 00

100 GO

100 00

100 00

106G a0

100 0D

100 00

100 00

100 00

1090 G0

130 00

100 00

106 00

100 00

100 00

100 00

10000

160 00

$80 00

100 00

100 0%
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35 Subsitiaries [continued)

Name of undertaking and country of ingorporation or Nature of busingss Registered % Held
residency Postcode
Direct Indirect
England & Wales No
Retrement Hamesearch Lunted 03828469 Speciabst estate agent  BHZS SNR 100 00
Reurement Markenng Services  England & Wales No
Lrmited 02195442 Darmant BHZS SNR 100 g0
Sonata Insurance Sarvices England & Waies No
Linuted 06704178 Dormant BH23 5NR 10000
Engiand & Wailes No
Stonadale {2012) Limited 06544358 Dormant BHZ25 5NR 100 00

The regstercd address for subsichanags with the posicade BH25 SNR 1 Queensway House 11 Quesnsway. New Mdion Hampshire,
UK BH25 5NR

The registered address for subsimanes with the postcode WRS 22X s Whillnglon Hal Whnitbngton Road  Waorcester
Worcestershie UK WRS 27X

The registered address for subsidianes with the postcode SG9 ORU s The Maltings Hyde Hall Farm Sandon Herffordshire UK.
S5G3 ORU

All dormant companies are exempt from prepanng mdnedual financial statements in accerdance with s394A of Companis Act 2006
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Notes to the cash fiow statement

2020 2019
£'000 £000
Operating loss for the year / period {1.693) (2,238)
Adustments for.
Loss on disposal of tangibie assets 55 -
Amgrtisation and impairment of intangible assets 10421 2.920
Depreciation and impairment of tangible assets 1.848 655
Share-based payments 68 -
Movernents in wosking capial
Decrease n dabtors 855 1861
increase / {decrease) in creditors 652 (14.517)
Increase / (decrease) in provision 3 (209}
Cash generated / {used) in operations 12214 {11.528)
included in cash generated from operations of £12 214k 1s cash outflow relaling to exceptional tems of
£3 718k (2019 £1.301k)
Analysis of changes in nel debt
A1 At 31
January Non-cash December
2020 Cash fiows Acquired changes 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 4558 (6641) 9868 - 7.585
Bank loans (64.200) (33 500} - - (97.700)
Shareholder loans - pringipat (51 036) (10.395) - (61.43%)
interest on sharehotder loans (1.622) 5 - {5.604) {7.221)
Deferred financing costs 2943 1.887 - {564; 4.246
Finanee leases 54 - (54) -
(1909.30%) (48 664) 9.668 (6.222) (184,521)

in respect of the non-cash changes. interest on shareholder loans were deferred at the Group's option

The non-cash change of £564k for deferred financing costs relates to £588k of amorbsation offset by £24k

cost to be paid in 2021,

The non-cash change of £54k for finance lease relates to the final unwing of finances leases held in 2020
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